
 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, MARCH 16, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

Anyone wishing to address the city council regarding any topic on this agenda is requested to complete a 

card available at the city clerk's desk.  Speakers are respectfully requested to limit their comments to three 

(3) minutes. 

The city council prohibits the use of cell phones and other electronic devices which emit an audible sound 

during all meetings with the exception of law enforcement, fire and rescue or health care providers on 

call. Persons in violation may be requested to leave the meeting 

AGENDA 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag - Joe Sabotta 

Roll Call 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Second and Final Reading of Ordinance O-05-2021, Amending Section 90-61 of the City Code 

to allow security and night-lights under certain circumstances. Andy Yeager 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted 

by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion 

is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. Backup 

documentation and staff recommendations have been previously submitted to the city council on these 

items. 

2. City Council approval of pay Application # 6 to KBT Contracting Corp in the amount of $ 

82,758.96 leaving a balance of $ 65,931.36.  Steve Thomas 

3. City Council approval of the Annual Memorial Day Festival - Kimberly Thomas 

4. City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, Disbursement Request #10 

in the amount of $26,600.00 to the Design Loan Agreement for the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection (FDEP), Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan 

Application DW 100102 for $356,800.00, for the design of capital improvements to the City's 

Water System. Scott Schultz 

5. City Council approval of Pay Request #6 in the amount of $125,115.00 to General Underground 

for Bid Award LC 2020-06, Reynolds Water System Improvements in the amount of 

Page 1



March 16, 2021 Agenda Page 2 of 3 

 

 

$685,724.00 (Base Bid), and Alternate #1 (water & sewer extension to MOBRO) in the amount 

of $314,275.00 for a total amount of $1,000,449.00.  Scott Schultz 

6. City Council Approval for pay request # 1in the amount of $ 91,774.97 from Jax Utilities 

Management, Inc, for the Construction of the new paving of the parking and drive through circle 

at the ASACC facility. Steve Thomas 

7. City Council approval of Minutes from 2/16/2021 and 3/02/2021 Regular Sessions Erin West 

8. City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, the construction contract 

with Williams Industrial Services, LLC, in the amount of $15,426,644.33, for construction of the 

Advanced Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP), as part of the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection (FDEP), State Revolving Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water 

Reclamation Facility (WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, SRF Agreement No. WW1000420.  Scott 

Schultz 

9. City Council approval of Change Order #3 in the amount of $119,950.00 for water main and 

sewer force main extension down Wilkes Point Road, and Change Order #4 for water main and 

sewer force main extension down County Road 315 to US 17 in the amount of $49,100.00 to 

General Underground, under Bid Award LC 2020-06, Reynolds Water System Improvements in 

the amount of $685,724.00 (Base Bid), Alternate #1 (water & sewer extension to MOBRO) in 

the amount of $314,275.00, Change Order #1 (Cove Subdivision services replacement) in the 

amount of $60,245, Change Order #2 (County Road 209 water / sewer extension) in the amount 

of $400,000.00, Change Order #3 in the amount of $119,950.00 and Change Order #4 in the 

amount of $49,100.00 for a total amount of $1,629,294.00.  Scott Schultz 

10. City Council approval of Pay Application #1 to Terry’s Electric for Chapman Substation 

Construction Improvements in the amount of $227,171.99, leaving a balance of $651,914.01 in 

contract number LC 2020-17 in the total amount of $879,086. Andy Yeager 

11. City Council approval of Pinewood Court Estates Replat  Michael Daniels 

12. City Council review and approval of request to temporarily close a portion of Walnut Street on 

3/27/2021 as part of a minor special event, Vietnam Veterans Day Ceremony, hosted by the 

BOCC  Michael Daniels 

13. City Council approval of funding in the amount of $44,814.60 to Irby for electric cable for the 

Chapman Substation project.  Scott Schultz 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

14. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports. 

15. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

Adjournment 

 

 

Page 2



March 16, 2021 Agenda Page 3 of 3 

 

 

The City Council meets the first and third Tuesday of each month beginning at 7:00 p.m., unless 

otherwise scheduled.  Meetings are held in City Hall at 321 Walnut Street.  Video and audio 

recordings of the meetings are available in the City Clerk’s Office upon request. 

City may take action on any matter during this meeting, including items that are not set forth within 

this agenda. 

Minutes of the City Council meetings can be obtained from the City Clerk’s office.   The Meetings 

are usually recorded, but are not transcribed verbatim for the minutes.  Persons requiring a 

verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, if 

available, or arrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting.  The cost of duplication and/or 

court reporter will be at the expense of the requesting party. 

Persons who wish to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter 

considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to 

ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and 

evidence upon which the appeal is based.  The City is not responsible if the in­house recording is 

incomplete for any reason. 

ADA NOTICE 

In accordance with Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special 

accommodations to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s office no later than 5:00 

p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Pursuant to Section 286.0114, Florida Statutes, effective October 1, 2013, the public is invited to speak 

on any “proposition” before a board, commission, council, or appointed committee takes official action 

regardless of whether the issue is on the Agenda.  Certain exemptions for emergencies, ministerial acts, 

etc. apply.  This public participation does not affect the right of a person to be heard as otherwise provided 

by law. 

EXPARTE COMMUNICATIONS 

Oral or written exchanges (sometimes referred to as lobbying or information gathering) between a Council 

Member and others, including staff, where there is a substantive discussion regarding a quasi­judicial 

decision by the City Council. The exchanges must be disclosed by the City Council so the public may 

respond to such exchanges before a vote is taken. 

 

Page 3



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: March 16, 2021 

FROM: Mike Null 

SUBJECT: Second and Final Reading of Ordinance O-05-2021, Amending Section 90-61 of the City 

Code to allow security and night-lights under certain circumstances. Andy Yeager 
 

BACKGROUND 

 

******Background from February 16, 2021 Council Meeting***************** 

 

For at least 20 years, the City has not been installing new security lights (night-lights) for electric 

customers.  We receive several requests each year for the installation of these security lights.  It is 

common for electric utilities to install security lights for their customers in exchange for a monthly fee. 

 

The electric department staff has completed a cost analysis of re-starting the program.  We would 

currently use an LED light that is more energy efficient and also has a 10 year warranty (and therefore a 

10 year life expectancy).The electric usage portion of installing and maintaining the light is estimated at 

$4.32 per month based on 12 hours per day usage.  Installation with one lineman and one apprentice 

would take about an hour.  With all of the costs included, the following fees are presented for Council 

discussion and direction: 

 If we charged $10 per month without any upfront fees it would take 43 months to start seeing a 

return on investment. 

 If we charged $15 per month without any upfront fees it would take 23 months to start seeing a 

return on investment. 

 If we charged $20 per month without any upfront fees it would take 14 months to start seeing a 

return on investment. 

 

Following is our current section of City Code that addresses security lights: 

************************** 

Sec. 90-61. - Security and night-lights. 

 

(a) The city shall charge such owner or tenant a fee as follows for existing security or night-lights. 

The city will not install such lights or repair/replace parts other than light head, photo eye or lamp. 

(1) 175-watt mercury vapor light or 100-watt high-pressure sodium light monthly charge: $10.25. 

(2) 400-watt mercury vapor light or 250-watt high-pressure sodium light monthly charge: $20.00. 

(3) Relocate light head, photo eye or lamp fee of $25.00 during normal business hours. 

 

(b) The requesting party shall agree in writing that any poles, lights, or accessories placed upon his 

property shall remain the sole property of the city, and the city shall have the right to remove such 

equipment at any time fees are delinquent. 

Page 4

Item #1.



*********************** 

The 100 Watt HPS light that we currently charge $10.25 for is rated at 9,400 lumens.  The new LED's 

are rated at 8,330 lumens, however we know from experience that they are actually much brighter and 

the light broadcasts further.  For reference, Clay Electric charges $7.10 for a 5,000 lumen light and 

$10.35 for a 17,000 lumen light.   

 

*******End Background from February16, 2021 Meeting**************************** 

 

At the February 16, 2021 Council Meeting, Council directed staff to bring back an ordinance allowing 

the city to begin installing new security lights again at the proposed rate of $10.  Staff is presenting O-

05-2021 for Council approval on First Reading with the new LED lights at the existing rate of $10.25.  

The reason for this is because the $10.25 rate is part of the City’s rate tariff that was approved by the 

Florida Public Service Commission (PSC) in 2015.  Using the existing rate will eliminate the need to 

submit a different rate to the PSC for approval. 

 

Council Approved Ordinance O-05-2021 on First Reading at its March 2, 2021 Council meeting. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

See above discussion regarding return on investment. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Ordinance O-05-2021 on second and final reading. 
 

Page 5

Item #1.



O-05-2021 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 90, ARTICLE III, DIVISION I, SECTION 90-61 TO 

ALLOW SECURITY AND NIGHT-LIGHTS UNDER CERTAIN 

CIRCUMSTANCES; PROVIDING REPEALER, SEVERABILITY, AND 

SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council authorized changes for Section 90-61 Security and 

Night-lights on February 16, 2021 during a Council meeting which are set forth below. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREEN 

COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. CODE AMENDED.  That Chapter 90 Article III Section 90-61 of 

the City Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

CHAPTER 90 

Sec. 90-61. - Security and night-lights. 

 

(a) The city shall charge such owner or tenant a fee as follows for existing security or 

night-lights. The city will not install and maintain such lights or repair/replace parts 

other than light head, photo eye or lamp.  The city will only install new lights on 

existing poles. 

(1) 175-watt mercury vapor light or 100-watt high-pressure sodium light or 

LED light monthly charge: $10.25. 

(2) 400-watt mercury vapor light or 250-watt high-pressure 

sodium light monthly charge: $20.00. 

(3) Relocate light head, photo eye or lamp fee of $25.00 during normal 

business hours. 

(b) The requesting party shall agree in writing that any poles, lights, or accessories 

placed upon his property shall remain the sole property of the city, and the city shall 

have the right to remove such equipment at any time fees are delinquent. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER.  Any Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the 

provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. The various parts, sections and clauses of this 

Ordinance are hereby declared severable. If any part, sentence, paragraph, section or 

clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 

remainder of the Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  Upon its adoption by the City Council, this 

ordinance shall become effective. 

 

Page 6

Item #1.



INTRODUCED AND APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY ON THE FIRST 

READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE 

SPRINGS, FLORIDA, ON THIS 2ND DAY OF MARCH, 2021. 

 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

 

              

      B. Van Royal, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 

 

 

PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, THIS 17TH DAY OF 

MARCH, 2021. 

 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

 

              

      B. Van Royal, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

 

 

       

L.J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

Page 7

Item #1.



PUBLIC HEARING
NOTICE

The City of Green Cove Springs
proposes to adopt the following
Ordinance:

ORDINANCE NO. O-05-2021
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA,
AMENDING CHAPTER 90 ,
ARTICLE III, DIVISION I,
SECTION 90-61 TO ALLOW
SECURITY AND NIGHT-LIGHTS
U N D E R  C E R T A I N
CIRCUMSTANCES; PROVIDING
REPEALER, SERVERABILITY,
AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.
The following public hearing has
been scheduled and will be held in
the City Council Chambers, 321
Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs,
to hear comments, if any, regarding
said Ordinance:
City Council: Second & Final
Reading on Tuesday, March 16, 2021
at 7:00 p.m. or shortly thereafter
Please be advised that if a person
decides to appeal any decision made
by the City Council with respect to
any matter considered at this
scheduled public hearing, he will
need to ensure that a verbatim
record of the proceedings is made,
which record includes the testimony
and evidence upon which the appeal
is to be based.
In accordance with the Americans
with Disabilities Act, any person
needing a special accommodation to
participate in this matter should
contact City Hall at (904) 297-7500 at
least three (3) days prior to the
meeting. Hearing impaired persons
may access through Florida Relay ?
Dial 7-1-1.
Said Ordinance is available at City
Hall for review during the hours of
7:30 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through
Thursday.
All interested individuals are invited
to attend this public hearing.
City of Green Cove Springs
Erin West, City Clerk
321 Walnut Street
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043
L. Steve Kennedy, City Manager
Legal 47488 published Feb 11, 2021
in Clay County's Clay Today
newspaper

Page 8

Item #1.



Page 9

Item #1.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: 3/16/2021 

FROM: Steve Thomas 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of pay Application # 6 to KBT Contracting Corp in the amount of $ 

82,758.96 leaving a balance of $ 65,931.36.  Steve Thomas 
 

BACKGROUND 

City Council approved entering a contract with KBT Contracting Corp on 6/16/2020 in the amount of 

$476,826.00 to build the new library building at Augusta Savage Arts & Community Center. 

Attached is pay application # 6 in the amount of 82,758.96 for Council Approval. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funds are available in the approved FY 21 CIP for the library project. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Pay Application # 6 to KBT Contracting Corp in the amount of $ 82,758.96 leaving a balance 

of $ 65,931.36. 
 

Page 10

Item #2.



Page 11

Item #2.



Page 12

Item #2.



Page 13

Item #2.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Council Meeting MEETING DATE: March 16,2021 

FROM: Kimberly Thomas, Executive Assistant 

SUBJECT: Annual Memorial Day Festival 
 

BACKGROUND 

33rd Annual Memorial Day Festival – As in years past, approx. 7000 expected in attendance, 100 

craft/food vendors, contests, live music in the gazebo, and ending with fireworks. Street closures 

requested (Magnolia, Spring, Walnut).  

Both entertainment agreements and Fireworks Contract are included for approval as well.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

City Council approval of the Annual Memorial Day Riverfest to include Fireworks Contract, 

Entertainment Agreements and Street Closures. 
 

Page 14

Item #3.



 City of Green Cove Springs 

 Special Event Application 

Page | 1

Instructions: The information requested in this application will help staff approve your event and ensure 

adequate facilities are provided. Each section must be completed in its entirety. This application should be 

submitted to the Development Services Department a minimum of 10 days in advance for a minor event 

and 30 days in advance for a major event. Staff will determine whether the event is major or minor. 

Event Title 

Description 

Event Promotional Event Concert/Performance Festival 

Purpose Fundraiser Parade/Procession/March Walk/Run 

Outdoor Market    Community Gathering  Other 

If other, please describe: 

Estimated Attendance  Peak ________           Average Per Day ________ Total ________ 

Event Website 

Date/Time 

Day of Event:    _____________________ Set-Up:         _________      AM      PM 

Start/End Time: _____________________ Breakdown:  _________      AM      PM 

Location 

Area of Event Site (SqFt or Acres): 

Host Organization (if any) 

Name 

Address 

Phone Number 

Email 

Contact Person 

Name 

Address 

Phone Number 

Email 

EVENT SUMMARY 

Provide the address and a general description of the venue and space to be utilized there. 

APPLICANT 

May 31, 2021 6
10am - 9pm 10

All

904-297-7054
kthomas@greencovesprings.com

Same
Same
Same

Annual Memorial Day Festival
All day event in Spring Park to include approx 100 vendors, live music,

contests, ending with fireworks.

4000 6500

Spring Park

321 Walnut Street
City of GCS

Kimberly Thomas

✔

Page 15

Item #3.



City of Green Cove Springs 

Special Event Application 

Page | 2

YES NO 

Please provide a site sketch for the venue which shows: (1) ingress and egress to the site, (2) any requested 

closure of public roads or public parking spaces, (3) designated event parking, (4) location of first aide, (5) 

location of garbage and recycling cans to be provided, (6) location of restrooms (on-site and portable, 

including those which are ADA accessible) and handwashing stations, (7) location of vendors, (8) location 

of entertainment, and (9) location of any other event infrastructure. 

 

Are you requesting the closure of any roads or public parking spaces in conjunction with

this event? If yes, please provide details.

NOTE: Road closures must be approved by City Council. 

Are you requesting any aide from the City for this event (police presence, barricades for

road closures, etc.)? If yes, please provide details.

NOTE: Assistance is subject to availability and staff approval; payment for services may be required. 

If approved, assistance will be coordinated by the applicant with the appropriate department.  

Will there be any tents / canopies used as part of the event? If yes, please indicate how

many and what size(s).

NOTE: All tents must be properly anchored. Tents may require additional review, associated fees, and 

permitting. Staff will help you determine if a tent permit is required. 

Applications should be submitted to the Development Services Department. E-mail your completed 

application to planning@greencovesprings.com or mail / hand deliver your completed application to: 

City of Green Cove Springs 

Development Services Department 

321 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

Minor events are decisioned by the Site Development Review Team (SDRT). Major events must be 

approved by City Council. After an initial approval of a major event, additional information may be 

required, as written in City Code Sec. 117-791 of the city code. 

Upon approval by SDRT (and when necessary, City Council) and payment of fees, staff will issue an event 

permit. 

VENUE SPECIFICS 

SUBMISSION INFORMATION 

All streets surrounding Spring Park - Magnolia, Walnut, Spring & Ferris

All the asbove

Vendor tents, employee cooling tent

✔

✔

✔

Page 16

Item #3.

mailto:planning@greencovesprings.com


  City of Green Cove Springs 

  Special Event Application 

Page | 3  
 

 

Minor Event: $50 

Major Event: $500 + $100 for each additional 1,000 persons over 5,000  
The applicant will pay the appropriate fee based on estimated total attendance but must provide attendance figures after 

the event to verify fees paid.  

 

 

I certify that I am at least eighteen (18) years old, that I am empowered to execute this application on behalf of 

the host organization. and that the information on this application is true and complete to the best of my 

knowledge. I agree to hold harmless, indemnify and defend the City of Green Cove Springs, its officers and 

employees from any liability costs and attorney fees, which may arise from the Special Event.  

I understand that this Special Event application does not guarantee approval of my event or reservation of the 

event location. I understand that failure to provide information and/or failure to obtain permits by established 

deadlines will result in cancellation of such Special Event. 

I agree to comply with all City ordinances and regulations in connection with this Special Event. I understand 

that the violation of any City ordinances and/or regulations during the event will result in immediate termination 

at the City’s discretion and ineligibility for future Special Events. 

I understand it is my responsibility to (1) ensure all vendors are properly licensed with the appropriate authorities 

and (2) return the site to its original condition after the event. Food vending is subject to inspection by the 

Department of Business and Professional Regulations, Division of Hotels and Restaurants (DBPR). Event 

coordinators are responsible for notifying DBPR that they intend to conduct an event with food vendors. Call 

DBPR – (850) 487.1395 for details. Alcoholic beverages may not be consumed as part of the event without the 

appropriate State and City approvals 

I understand temporary signs and banners are not allowed in the City Limits of Green Cove Springs unless in 

areas designated by the City Manager or for events which are City Sponsored. Signage otherwise would be 

limited to the duration of the event. 

I agree to pay the City for any services required in staging this Special Event. I understand that a Final Permit 

authorizing the conduct of the event will not be issued until all permit fees are paid and all required information 

has been provided.  

If the event is cancelled after receipt of the permit, I understand a refund is not guaranteed. Any changes in venue 

or event dates must be submitted to the Development Services Department to be routed for review; approval of 

changes is not guaranteed. 

 

Applicant Signature           

Applicant Printed Name          

Applicant Title (if any)           

Date             

 

 

AFFIDAVIT OF APPLICANT 

FEES 

Kimberly Thomas
Executive Assistant/City Event Coordinator

2/18/2021

Page 17

Item #3.



Page 18

Item #3.



Page 19

Item #3.



Page 20

Item #3.



Page 21

Item #3.



Page 22

Item #3.



Page 23

Item #3.



Page 24

Item #3.



Page 25

Item #3.



 

                     

CONTRACT FOR  

FIREWORKS DISPLAY 

 
Sponsors   :  City of Green Cove Springs 
Contact   :  Kimberly Thomas (904) 509-3943 
Date of Display  :  May 31st, 2021 
Location   :  St Johns River, Spring Park 
Time    :  9:15pm 
Duration   :  14-15 Minutes 
Show Price   :  $10,000 
Deposit   :  $5,000 
Remarks   :  Music and Barges included 
Rain Date   :  December 5th, 2021 
 
We the undersigned, being interested in a fireworks display for City of Green Cove Springs agree to pay a 
price of $10,000 for the display agreed upon, which will be furnished by KYNEX, Inc.  
 
The undersigned, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows: 
 

1. Sponsor to make a deposit payment of 50% of the contact price upon signing of contract, but no later than 30 days prior 
to display. 

2. In the event Sponsor shall fail to pay any sum when due under the terms of this contract, Sponsor shall pay, in addition 
to such amount, interest rate of 1½% per month on the unpaid amount from the original due date. Sponsor does further 
agree that it shall pay KYNEX’s reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs in the event KYNEX shall commence suit or 
incur fees to compel Sponsor to pay any sums due hereunder or otherwise as a result of Sponsor’s default of any of the 
terms and provisions herein contained. 

3. SPONSOR’S AGENT: Kimberly Thomas be designated as Sponsor’s agent to whom all questions and inquiries shall 
relay all questions and inquiries. Sponsor’s agent shall be the only agent of sponsor authorized to request rescheduling 
of the delivery and exhibition of the fireworks on the part of the sponsor. 

4. If even is on land, sponsor to furnishing police and/or crowd security personnel, provide proper parking supervision, and 
insure adequate patrol of the safety zone as marked and secured by the sponsor until KYNEX Inc. advises that it is no 
longer necessary. KYNEX Inc. is not responsible for clean-up of land-based shows other than company equipment, 
supplies, and packing materials. A land based fireworks show produces debris. Sponsor shall be responsible for the 
clean-up of any such debris. 

5. If event is over water, KYNEX Inc. will be responsible for marine permit, and for control of safety zone.  

Page 26

Item #3.



 
6. KYNEX Inc. reserves the right to stop the display in the event persons, vehicles, or animals enter the secured safety 

zone and security is unable or unwilling to remove them and enforce the safety regulations.  
7. KYNEX Inc. will furnish all applicable licenses, permits and $3,000,000 liability insurance and pyrotechnicians for your 

electronically fired display.  

8. NOTE: In accordance with local regulations and ordinances, fireworks displays shall not take place later than 10:30pm 

unless approval is obtained from the governing authority. The restrictions shall not be applicable with regards to 
holidays such as December 31, January 1, or other national holidays. If for some reason, shoot time does not occur 
before the allotted time and shoot is cancelled due to local authority or expiration of permit, Sponsor is liable for full 
payment of display.  

9. Hold harmless KYNEX Inc. from any claims that do not directly relate to damages produced by its staff, equipment, or 
pyrotechnic material. 

10. CREDITS: As a material inducement to KYNEX agreeing to enter into this agreement, Sponsors shall give KYNEX 
program credit as sole fireworks supplier and producer in all press releases, advertising, and any other program 
announcements, printed or otherwise.  

11. If show is canceled, sponsor is responsible for any permit, fire watch, or barge/tug fees, if applicable. Additionally, 
Sponsor will be responsible for load in/ load out expenses not to exceed 50% of the budget. If show is stopped while in 
progress for any reason, Sponsor will still be responsible for contract amount minus the cost of material not discharged.  

12. If winds exceed 20 miles per hour, fireworks display will be postponed to an agreed date between Sponsor and KYNEX 
Inc. 

13. Rain date policy is as follows: postponement time is 11:30am day of display. 

14. If the delivery and/or exhibition of the fireworks are postponed by reason of inclement weather, it shall be re-scheduled 
to the Inclement Weather Date set forth by Sponsor.  

15. IMPORTANT NOTE: Items listed in this proposal assume a firing area that conforms to NFPA Code 1123-2014, 

which states that there must be at least 70 feet per inch of shell diameter between firing site and any spectators, cars, 
or buildings. This program requires a safety zone that has a radius of 350 feet because of the inclusion of 5 inch shells. 
Adjustments will be made to the content of this program if necessary to conform to NFPA 1123-2014.  

 

**KYNEX Inc., upon acceptance of this contract in writing, agrees to fulfill the contract in a workmanlike and 
professional manner.  

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sponsor 

 

 

 

 

Page 27

Item #3.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: March 16, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, Disbursement 

Request #10 in the amount of $26,600.00 to the Design Loan Agreement for the Florida 

Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 

(SRF) Loan Application DW 100102 for $356,800.00, for the design of capital 

improvements to the City's Water System.    
 

BACKGROUND 

On June 16, 2016 the City Council approved the Rate Study conducted by Staff and Mittauer & Associates.  

On March 21, 2017, Council approved a Task Order with Mittauer & Associates for $50,000.00 for 
development of a Water Master Plan. 

On June 19, 2018, the City Council approved the Water Master Plan conducted by Staff and Mittauer.  The 
Master Plan included a thorough review of the existing Water Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and 
resulted in an update to the CIP.  As a result of the updated CIP, Staff requested an update to the Water 
portion of the Rate Study to evaluate financing options and alternatives to CIP financing. 

On September 4, 2018, City Council approved a Task Authorization with Mittauer & Associates for 
$12,000.00 to update the Water Rate Study.  

At the March 5, 2019 City Council meeting Staff and Mittauer presented the updated Water Rate Study 
which was subsequently approved by the City Council.  The City Council directed staff to return with an 
Ordinance authorizing the borrowing of funds to complete the immediate and future CIP needs.  Staff was 
also directed to draft an RFP to secure a loan for the “Priority 1” immediate need CIP projects. 

The Priority 1, Reynolds Water System Improvements, total design and construction estimate is 
$1,370,000.00 

The Priority 2, Harbor Road, Bonaventure and Magnolia Point Cul-de-sac, total design and construction 
estimate is $4,850,000.00. 

The Priority 3, Reynolds High Service Pumps & Well 2 design and construction estimate is $2,500,000.00. 

The Priority 4, asbestos concrete (AC) pipe replacement. Design and construction estimate is $6,620,000.00 

The Priority 5, Governors Creek Water Main, design, and construction estimate is $360,000.00 

Design and permitting for Priorities 3-5 cost estimate is $1,424,000.00 

Page 28

Item #4.



 Total 2019 Water CIP Cost Estimate is $17,124,000.00  
 
Council approved Ordinance No. O-07-2019 on First Reading as to Form Only on 3/19/19 which 
authorized staff to borrow up to $18,000,000.00 for capital improvements to the City's Water System. 
 
Council approved Ordinance No. O-07-2019 on Second and Final Reading on 4/2/19 which 
authorized staff to borrow up to $18,000,000.00 for capital improvements to the City's Water System 
 
On 6/18/19 Council approved staff to submit and authorized the mayor to execute a Request for 
Inclusion (RFI) to the FDEP-SRF Program for $356,800.00 in funding to design certain capital 
improvements to the City's Water System to be prepared to move into construction as the needs 
arise. 
 
On 10/15/2019 Council approved of and authorized the Mayor to execute associated documents for 
the actual loan application.  The FDEP-SRF Program has tentatively approved a 10-year loan with a 
principal amount of $356,800.00 with a "loan forgiveness" of 50% which would make the actual loan 
amount approximately $178,400.00 (there are some loan fees).  Final principal forgiveness and loan 
percentage rate will be determined at completion of loan processing.  
 
On 1/21/2020 Council approved and the mayor executed the actual loan agreement. 
 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$26,600.00 from the Water Department CIP Budget 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve of, and authorize the Mayor to execute, Disbursement Request #10 in the amount of $26,600.00 

to the Design Loan Agreement for the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Application DW 100102 for $356,800.00, for the 

design of capital improvements to the City's Water System.    

Page 29

Item #4.



    

  

      

       

 
                 

   

    

   

  

  

           

  

  

   

 

 

Disbursement Request Package
State Revolving Fund Programs 

1. Project Sponsor

2. Project Number

3. Disbursement Request Number

4. Invoice Period

5. Type of Request: Partial Final 

6. Federal Employer Identification Number

7. Mail EFT Send Remittance to: 

(This must match an address setup in MyFloridaMarketPlace.com as the Vendor address). 

Disbursement Details 
(Rounded to the nearest dollar) 

1. Planning and Specialized Studies (attach invoices)

2. Design (attach invoices)

3. Construction and Demolition (attach pay estimates)

4. Technical Services during Construction (attach invoices)

5. Other (must be specified in agreement)

6. 

7. Total cumulative to date

8.. Disbursements previously requested 

9. Amount requested for disbursement

Amount This Request Total Cumulative 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ 

$( ) 

$ $ 

(Total of lines 1 through 6) (Line 7 minus Line 8) 

** SUBMIT ONE ORIGINAL COPY OF THIS FORM AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION TO: ** 

SRF_Reporting@dep.state.fl.us 

Page 1 of 4 

City of Green Cove Springs, Florida

DW100102

10

1/2/2021 through 1/29/2021

59-6000328

Wells Fargo Bank N.A. Account#: 2000007820388 | ABA#: 121000248

Account Name: City of Green Cove Springs Utility Fund Savings

City Address:  321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, FL  32043

  

                        26,600.00           224,100.00

           224,100.00

                        26,600.00
             26,600.00

        197,500.00

x

Page 30

Item #4.

mailto:SRF_Reporting@dep.state.fl.us
http:MyFloridaMarketPlace.com


 

  

 

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

   

 

  
 

  
 

 

  

 

 

 

  Project Number _______________________ 

Disbursement Number _______________ 

Authorized Representative’s Certification
of Disbursement Request and Davis-Bacon Certification 

I, , 

(name of Authorized Representative designated in the agreement) 

on behalf of , do hereby certify that: 

(name of Project Sponsor) 

1. The disbursement amount requested on page 1 of this form is for allowable costs for the project
described in the agreement.

2. Materials, labor, equipment, and/or services representing costs included in the amount requested
have been satisfactorily purchased, performed or received, and applied toward completing the project;
such costs are documented by invoices or other appropriate documentation which are filed in the
Project Sponsor’s permanent records.

3. The Project Sponsor is required to pay such costs under the terms and provisions of contracts relating
directly to the project, and the Project Sponsor is not in default of any terms or provisions of the
contracts.

4. All funds received to date have been applied toward completing the project.

5. All permits and approvals required for the construction which is underway have been obtained.

6. If applicable for construction projects, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the above
referenced project complies with Davis-Bacon and Related Acts such that all of the laborers and
mechanics employed by contractors and subcontractors during the referenced period on the
contractors pay applications submitted with this disbursement request were paid wages at rates not
less than those listed on the prevailing wage rate contained in the contract documents and that all
applicable provisions of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts have been met.

I also certify that interviews and periodic reviews of a representative sample of the weekly payroll data
have been performed to verify that contractors and subcontractors are paying the appropriate wage
rate.

I understand that falsifying information on this certification may be grounds for termination of the SRF
loan agreement.

( Signature of Authorized Representative) 

(Title) 

(Date) 

Page 2 of 4 

Period of Certification: 
1/2/21 through 1/29/21 DEP 
Agreement No. DW100102

B. Van Royal, Mayor

City of Green Cove Springs, Florida

Mayor

March 2, 2021

10
DW100102

Page 31

Item #4.



MITTAUER & 
ASSOCIATES, INC.
580-1 WELLS ROAD
ORANGE PARK, FL  32073

904-278-0030

Invoice  21049

BILL TO

City of Green Cove Springs
321 Walnut Street
Green Cove Springs, FL  
32043
Attn: Mike Null

DATE
02/02/2021

PLEASE PAY
$26,600.00

DUE DATE
02/22/2021

M&A PROJECT NO.
8905-53-1

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

DEP SRF WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
DESIGN PHASE
DEP AGREEMENT NO. DW100102 
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA
P.O. NO. 2721879 & P.O. NO. 2722614 (AMENDMENT NO. 1)

Engineering services concerning the DEP SRF Water System Improvements, Design Phase 
project for the City of Green Cove Springs including completion of Amendment No. 1 survey 
services during the period ending January 29, 2021.

LUMP SUM CONTRACT AMOUNT:  $196,800.00 + $56,100.00 (AMENDMENT NO. 1) = 
$252,900.00
     Item A.  Basic Engineering Services - Design Phase, $170,300 + $17,500 = $187,800
     Item B.  Topographic Surveying, $15,000 + $26,600 = $41,600
     Item C.  Permitting Services, $5,000
     Item D.  Geotechnical Services, $3,000 + $2,000 = $5,000
     Item E.  FDEP SRF Administration Services $3,500
     Item F.  Meetings, included above
     Item G. Specialized Studies, $10,000

AMOUNT PREVIOUSLY INVOICED:  $37,500.00

Amount Earned This Period 26,600.00

TOTAL DUE $26,600.00

Thank you for your business.

THANK YOU.

Page 32

Item #4.



Sponsor Name: 10
DEP Agreement No.:

Vendor  Name Invoice Number  Invoice Date Invoice Amount Local Share or Other Funding or 
Amount Not Requested Requested Amount Check Number Category (ie. construction, technical 

services)
Mittauer & Associates, Inc. 21049 2/2/2021 26,600.00$                      -$                                          26,600.00$                  Design Services

-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             

Totals: 26,600.00$               -$                                 26,600.00$                  

DW100102

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

REIMBURSEMENT SUMMARY

City of Green Cove Springs, Florida Payment Request No.:

Page 33

Item #4.



Summary of Work 
DEP SRF Water System Improvements - Design Phase 

DEP Agreement No. DW100102 
City of Green Cove Springs, FL 

M&A Project Nos. 8905-51-1, 8905-53-1 & 8905-55-1 
March 2, 2021 

 
 
Summary of work for Green Cove Springs Disbursement Request #10 to accompany Mittauer & 
Associates Invoice No. 21049, consists of:  
 
Invoice No. 21049 DEP SRF Water System Improvements, Design Phase – 100% completion of 
Amendment No. 1 Surveying Services.  Overall, the project services are 25.3% complete.  
 
 
 

Page 34

Item #4.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: March 16, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Pay Request #6 in the amount of $125,115.00 to General 

Underground for Bid Award LC 2020-06, Reynolds Water System Improvements in the 

amount of $685,724.00 (Base Bid), and Alternate #1 (water & sewer extension to 

MOBRO) in the amount of $314,275.00 for a total amount of $1,000,449.00. 
 

BACKGROUND 

On June 16, 2016 the City Council approved the Rate Study conducted by Staff and Mittauer & 

Associates.   

 

On March 21, 2017, Council approved a Task Order with Mittauer & Associates for $50,000.00 for 

development of a Water Master Plan. 

 

On June 19, 2018, the City Council approved the Water Master Plan conducted by Staff and Mittauer.  

The Master Plan included a thorough review of the existing Water Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

and resulted in an update to the CIP.  As a result of the updated CIP, Staff requested an update to the 

Water portion of the Rate Study to evaluate financing options and alternatives to CIP financing. 

 

On September 4, 2018, City Council approved a Task Authorization with Mittauer & Associates for 

$12,000.00 to update the Water Rate Study.   

 

At the March 5, 2019 City Council meeting Staff and Mittauer presented the updated Water Rate Study 

which was subsequently approved by the City Council.  The City Council directed staff to return with an 

Ordinance authorizing the borrowing of funds to complete the immediate and future CIP needs.  Staff 

was also directed to draft an RFP to secure a loan for the “Priority 1” immediate need CIP projects. 

 

The Priority 1, Reynolds Water System Improvements, total design and construction estimate is 

$1,370,000.00 

 

The Priority 2, Harbor Road, Bonaventure and Magnolia Point Cul-de-sac, total design and construction 

estimate is $4,850,000.00. 

 

Page 35

Item #5.



The Priority 3, Reynolds High Service Pumps & Well 2 design and construction estimate is 

$2,500,000.00. 

 

The Priority 4, asbestos concrete (AC) pipe replacement. Design and construction estimate is 

$6,620,000.00 

 

The Priority 5, Governors Creek Water Main, design, and construction estimate is $360,000.00 

Design and permitting for Priorities 3-5 cost estimate is $1,424,000.00  

Total 2019 Water CIP Cost Estimate is $17,124,000.00  

 

Council approved Ordinance No. O-07-2019 on First Reading as to Form Only on 3/19/19 which 

authorized staff to borrow up to $18,000,000.00 for capital improvements to the City's Water System. 

 

Council approved Ordinance No. O-07-2019 on Second and Final Reading on 4/2/19 which authorized 

staff to borrow up to $18,000,000.00 for capital improvements to the City's Water System 

 

On April 2, 2019 staff was directed to draft an RFP to secure a loan for the "Priority 1" immediate CIP 

projects.  The Priority 1, Reynolds Water System Improvements, total design and construction estimate 

is $1,370,000 plus costs and fees related to the issuance of the loan.  

 

On April 2, 2019, Council adopted Ordinance No. O-07-2019 authorizing the borrowing of up to 

$18,000,000 for capital improvements to the City's water system.  Staff was also directed to draft an 

RFP to secure a loan for the "Priority 1" immediate CIP projects.  The Priority 1, Reynolds Water 

System Improvements, total design and construction estimate is $1,370,000 plus costs and fees related to 

the issuance of the loan.   

 

During the May 21, 2019 meeting, Council authorized staff to award the loan for improvements to the 

City's water distribution system in Reynolds Park to Synovus Bank.  Synovus Bank was chosen to 

finance the Water Utility Revenue Note, Series 2019 with a fixed 2.63% interest rate for 10 years 

without premium or prepayment penalty.  This loan is secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues of 

the City’s Water Utility System.  The net revenues pledge for the Water Utility Revenue Note, Series 

2019 will be obligated for the ten year term of the loan.  The maturity date for this loan is April 1, 2029. 

 

A formal bid was conducted by city staff and Mittauer for the Reynolds Water System Improvements.  

Included as an alternate was the extension of water & sewer services to MOBRO which came up at the 

end of the design and was added. 

 

City staff and the engineer of record have reviewed the received bids and certified General Underground 

as the qualified bidder. 

 

Page 36

Item #5.



Through value engineering and project optimization the total amount for the Reynolds improvements 

was $684,724.00, far below the $1,350,000.00 estimate.  This enabled staff to include financing for the 

extension of water services to and across the MOBRO property to them water.  MOBRO will be 

contributing approximately $150,000.00 of the $314,275.00 cost of the extension for water and sewer 

services.  The system has been sized for future expansion east on State Road 16. 

 

City Council approved Bid Award LC 2020-06, Reynolds Water System Improvements in the amount of 

$685,724.00 (Base Bid), and Alternate #1 (water & sewer extension to MOBRO) in the amount of 

$314,275.00 for a total amount of $1,000,449.00 to general Underground on 5/19/2020. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$125,115.00 from the Water Fund CIP Budget 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Pay Request #6 in the amount of $125,115.00 to General Underground for Bid 

Award LC 2020-06, Reynolds Water System Improvements in the amount of $685,724.00 

(Base Bid), and Alternate #1 (water & sewer extension to MOBRO) in the amount of 

$314,275.00 for a total amount of $1,000,449.00. 
 

Page 37

Item #5.



Page 38

Item #5.



Page 39

Item #5.



Page 40

Item #5.



Page 41

Item #5.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: 03/16/2021 

FROM: Name, Title 

SUBJECT: City Council Approval for pay request # 1in the amount of $ 91,774.97 from Jax Utilities 

Management, Inc, for the Construction of the new paving of the parking and drive through 

circle at the ASACC facility. 
 

BACKGROUND 

City Council approved to enter a contract with Jax Utilities Management Inc, on January 5, 2021 City 

Council meeting to construct the new parking for the ASACC facility in the amount of $ 219,195.54 and 

the amount before you of $ 91,774.97 tonight is for what has been completed on this project as of this 

date. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Amount of $ 91,774.97 from COVID 19 Funds from Account # 101-1005-5006404. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Pay request # 1 from Jax Utilities Management ,Inc in the amount of $ 91,774.97.  
 

Page 42

Item #6.



Page 43

Item #6.



Page 44

Item #6.



 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag - Pastor Weeks, Russell Baptist Church 

Roll Call 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Van Royal, Vice Mayor Ed Gaw, Council Member 

Connie Butler, Council Member Matt Johnson, Council Member Steven Kelley 

 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: L.J. Arnold, III, City Attorney, Steve Kennedy, City Manager, Mike 

Null, Assistant City Manager, Erin West, City Clerk 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

No public comment 

AWARDS & RECOGNITION 

1. Recognition – CEB Spelling Bee Winner 

Mayor Royal introduces Joe Sabotta who speaks and introduces 10-year-old William 

Spires.  William won the Charles E Bennett spelling bee and was the only 5th grader to enter into 

the County wide spelling bee. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2. Second and Final Reading of Ordinance No. O-16-2020, amending Section 101-5 to add new 

definitions and revise definitions for lot widths and setbacks, establishing Section 101-160 

concerning flag lot requirements, and amending Sections 113-131 and 113-132 to revise access 

requirements.  Michael Daniels 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-16-2020 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels presents and explains the Ordinance. 

Mayor Royal opens the public hearing. 

Following no public comment, the public hearing is closed. 

Motion to approve and adopt Ordinance No. O-16-2020, amending City Code Chapter 101, 

Article I; establishing Chapter 101, Article II, Division 3. Section 101-160 Flag Lots; and 

amending Chapter 113, Article II, Division 4. 

Motion made by Council Member Johnson, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Council Member Butler, Council Member Johnson, Council Member 

Kelley 

 

 

Page 45

Item #7.



February 16, 2021 Minutes Page 2 of 5 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted 

by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion 

is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. Backup 

documentation and staff recommendations have been previously submitted to the city council on these 

items. 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda Item 3 through 16. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Johnson. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

3. City Council approval of payment of 2/4 of Law Enforcement Basic Recruitment Program for J. 

Mares.  Derek Asdot 

4. City Council approval of Change Order #1 in the amount of $31,000.00 to Jax Utilities 

Management for Bid Award LC 2020-07, US 17 / SR 16 Force Main Modifications in the 

amount of $412,915.00, increasing the total award to $443,000.00. Scott Schultz 

5. City Council approval of the FY 2021 Revenues and Expenditures Report and the Quarterly 

Investment Report for the period ending December 31, 2020.  Marlena Guthrie 

6. City Council approval of an increase in funding of $4,870.24 due to inoperative valves resulting 

in a "wet tap", and approval of Contractors Pay Request #1 / Final Invoice in the amount of 

$57,742.64 to Jax Utilities Management for water main installation on Washington Lane. Scott 

Schultz 

7. City Council approval to surplus the Public Safety Vehicles / Equipment listed on Attachment 

“A”  Scott Schultz 

8. City Council approval the purchase of a pre-fabricated concrete restroom building for the 

Augusta Savage Friendship Park (Tot Lot) from Leesburg Concrete Company, Inc. piggybacking 

on Lake County, FL Contract Number 16-02129 in the amount of $79,129. Mike Null 

9. City Council approval of the Engineer’s Recommendation of Award to Williams Industrial 

Services, LLC, in the amount of $15,426,644.33, for the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection (FDEP), State Revolving Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility 

(WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, SRF Agreement No. WW1000420. Scott Schultz 

10. City Council approval to surplus diesel backup generator at the Harbor Road WWTF. Scott 

Schultz 

11. City Council approval to issue a Purchase Order to Heart Utilities in the amount of $215,000 to 

construct electric system improvements along Green Cove Ave and Roberts St.  Andy Yeager 

12. City Council approval to issue a Purchase Order to Heart Utilities in the amount of $262,000 to 

construct electric system improvements along Houston St. Andy Yeager 

Page 46

Item #7.



February 16, 2021 Minutes Page 3 of 5 

 

 

13. Award of Bid LC 2021-01 for GIS Design Consultant to develop a comprehensive online 

mapping system pursuant to the City’s contract with the Department of Economic Opportunity 

for the Community Planning Technical Assistance Grant Michael Daniels  

14. City Council approval of Core I and III – Executive/Administrative Assistant Training in 

Orlando, FL.  Derek Asdot 

15. City Council approval of a PO not to exceed the amount of $133,376 to Play Power LT 

Farmington, Inc. for a handicap playground.  Steve Thomas 

16. City Council authorization to purchase a bucket truck from Altec Industries, Inc. under the GSA 

bid in an amount not to exceed $230,000.  Andy Yeager 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

17. City Council discussion and direction on the installation of security lights for electric customers.  

Mike Null, Andy Yeager 

Assistant City Manager, Mike Null explains this item is for Council consideration to begin 

installation of new security lights and advises the cost breakout for installing the security lights 

has been provided. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve restarting the standing the security light program in Green Cove with 

the $10 charge per month without any upfront fees. 

Motion made by Council Member Johnson, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

18. Award of Bid LC 2020-20 for an Urban Planning or Interdisciplinary Firm to complete the 2045 

Comprehensive Plan Update.  Michael Daniels  

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels presents on BID LC 2020-20. 

George Kramer with S&ME speaks to the Council concerning the Comp Plan update.  Mr. 

Kramer thanks the City and all the members of the selection committee. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve award of bid LC 2020-20 for an Urban Planning or Interdisciplinary 

Firm to complete the 2045 Comprehensive Plan Update to S&ME. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

19. City Council approval for the City of Green Cove Springs to become a Monarch City USA.  

Steve Kennedy 

City Manager, Steve Kennedy speaks to the Council concerning the City becoming Monarch 

City USA. 

Page 47

Item #7.



February 16, 2021 Minutes Page 4 of 5 

 

 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels speaks concerning Monarch City USA and 

advises it will be similar to being Tree City USA. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve the City of Green Cove Springs becoming Monarch City USA. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Johnson. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

20. City Council approval of the applications submitted for the Citizen’s Advisory Committee.  

Steve Kennedy 

City Manager, Steve Kennedy advises the Council there are 33 members he is recommending for 

the Citizen’s Advisory Committee.  Mr. Kennedy advises if the list is approved, letters will go 

out letting the citizens know they are on the committee.  There will be a swearing in of the 

committee members. 

Motion to approve accepting the applications submitted for the Citizen’s Advisory 

Committee. 

Motion made by Council Member Butler, Seconded by Council Member Johnson. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

Joe Sabotta 212 North St., GCS questions what the CAC will be doing and how it will work. 

Mr. Kennedy responds to Mr. Sabotta concerns and explains what the CAC will be doing. 

21. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports. 

The City Manager and City Attorney made comments regarding various city activities, events, 

operations, and projects. 

City Manager, Steve Kennedy advises he met with Vice Mayor Gaw and Executive Assistant 

Kimberly Thomas concerning some changes to Food Truck Friday.  Mr. Kennedy advises the 

first change moving is the bands to the gazebo and the second change is splitting up the food 

trucks between Walnut Street and Spring Street to allow for more social distancing. 

Council discussion follows. 

Mayor Royal and Vice Mayor Gaw advise they wish to abstain on this vote due to their 

involvement with Food Truck Friday. 

Emergency motion to accept the changes stated by City Manager, Steve Kennedy with 

regards to Food Truck Friday. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Johnson. 

Voting Yea: Council Member Butler, Council Member Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

Voting Abstaining: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw 

22. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

The City Council made comments regarding various city activities, events, operations, and 

projects. 

Page 48

Item #7.



February 16, 2021 Minutes Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, the meeting was adjourned at 8:37 

p.m. 

 

 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
 

 B. Van Royal, Mayor 

  

Attest:  

 
 

Erin West, City Clerk  

 

Page 49

Item #7.



 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, MARCH 02, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag - Pastor Pendergraft - Sacred Heart Catholic 

Roll Call 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Van Royal, Vice Mayor Ed Gaw, Council Member 

Connie Butler, Council Member Matt Johnson, Council Member Steven Kelley 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: L.J. Arnold, III, City Attorney, Steve Kennedy, City Manager, Mike 

Null, Assistant City Manager, Erin West, City Clerk 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

1. Stan Kinmonth 194 Malley Cove Ln, Fleming Island thanks the Council for their support of the 

MVPA First Florida Chapter event that was held at Reynolds Park. 

AWARDS & RECOGNITION 

1. Swearing-In of Citizen’s Advisory Committee 

 

City Manager, Steve Kennedy speaks to the Council and the Citizen’s Advisory Committee.  Mr. 

Kennedy introduction Judge Garfield Hurt. 

Judge Hurt proceeded to swear in the new members of the CAC. 

2. Monarch City Proclamation 

Motion to approve the Monarch City USA Proclamation. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

Mayor Royal reads and presents that proclamation to the Green Cove Springs Garden Club. 

2. AMIKids Clay County – Presentation 

 

Executive Director, Maria Przybylski speaks to the Council and explains what AMIKids of Clay 

County involves. 

Various students with AMIKids speak and inform the Council what they learn and do every day. 

Troy Betz with Vallencourt advises the Council how Vallencourt is involved AMIKids and 

shows support for the program. 

Mike Vallencourt speaks to the Council and supports the AMIKids program. 

City Manager, Steve Kennedy advises there is discussion going on with AMIKids about cost and 

plans.  Once that is complete it will be brought to the Council in a form of reccommendation. 

Page 50

Item #7.



March 02, 2021 Minutes Page 2 of 4 

 

 

Council discussion follows. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted 

by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion 

is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. Backup 

documentation and staff recommendations have been previously submitted to the city council on these 

items. 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda Item 4 through 15. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Johnson. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler 

4. Council approval of Chief Asdot to attend the FBINAA Annual Training Conference in Orlando, 

FL.  Derek Asdot 

5. Council approval of Chief Asdot to attend FPCA Summer Conference in Hollywood, FL.  Derek 

Asdot 

6. City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor, City Attorney and City Clerk to 

execute, Amendment #1 in the amount of $56,100.00 to the Design Loan Agreement for the 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 

(SRF) Loan Application DW 100102 for $356,800.00, for the design of capital improvements to 

the City's Water System.  This amendment increases the total loan / grant (50%) amount to 

$412,900.00.  Scott Schultz 

7. City Council approval of Scrivener’s Error to the April 16, 2019 Minutes  Kimberly Thomas 

8. City Council approval of funding in the amount of $24,270.30 to Jax Utilities Management for 

sewer connections to four parcels, piggybacking on City of Jacksonville Contract # 8258-

19  Scott Schultz 

9. City Council approval of street closure  Kimberly Thomas 

10. City Council approval of Invoices #1-4 in the amount of 120,014.80 to Mastry / Yanmar, for 

purchase of generators as part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Federally-

Funded Subaward and Grant Agreement # H0297 / Project Number 4337-217-R, for 

$537,018.75, for Utility Mitigation and Generator Project to install generators on 17 of the City's 

lift stations.  Note:  The City has received 75% funding from HMGP.  Staff received an advance 

from HMGP in the amount of $333,578.20.  Scott Schultz 

11. City Council approval of Minutes from 2/02/2021 Regular Session Erin West 

12. City Council approval of Land Dedication for new roadway adjacent to Ruby Street  Michael 

Daniels 

Page 51

Item #7.



March 02, 2021 Minutes Page 3 of 4 

 

 

13. City Council approval of Engagement Letter to retain the services of Nabors, Giblin & 

Nickerson, P. A. (“NG&N”) to assist with the annual non-ad valorem assessments for the 

Magnolia West subdivision’s solid waste and City-wide stormwater programs.  Jim Arnold 

14. City Council approval of a change order #3 to KBT Contracting Corp to Construct a drive 

through shelter for the Food Pantry in the amount of $94,200.00. Steve Thomas 

15. City Council adoption of a Language Access Plan (LAP) for Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 

persons. Mike Null 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

16. First Public Hearing to take recommendations for a CDBG-CV Coronavirus Cycle grant 

application with the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. Mike Null 

Assistant City Manager, Mike Null speaks about the CDBG-CV Coronavirus Cycle grant and 

introduces David Fox with Fred Fox Enterprises. 

David Fox presents and explains the upcoming grant cycle for the CDBG-CV Coronavirus 

Cycle. 

Pat Garlinghouse, 103 S Magnolia Ave. GCS, questions the dollar amount.  Mr. Fox advises the 

minimum is $200,000 and the maximum is $5,000,000. 

Mayor Royal opens the public hearing. 

Joe Sabotta, 212 North St. GCS advises he did not understand any of the presentation. 

Mayor Royal responds to Mr. Sabotta and explains the CDBG grant. 

Mayor Royal suggests using this grant to help convert the Augusta Savage Center. 

Bob Page 1862 Colonial Drive GCS advises he likes the Augusta Savage project and suggests 

doing a project with the Rivers House. 

Mr. Sabotta advises he understands the grant and suggest ear marking the money.  If $500,000 

comes in, are there other projects that need desperately completed?  Is the money going to be 

used for what it is designated to be used for or used on other projects?  Mayor Royal advises the 

funds are audited and the money must be used for the designated project. 

Mr. Null advises this grant is very competitive with only one project application being submitted.  

If the project does not use all the funds, then the difference will be sent back. 

Council discussion follows. 

Mr. Null advises a project staff has discussed providing wifi to LMI residents. 

Council discussion follows concerning infrastructure for the wifi. 

Mr. Sabotta speaks against supplying wifi to Green Cove residents. 

Council discussion follows. 

Mr. Page speaks and advises this is more of a mitigation grant. 

Council discussion follows. 

Following no further comments, the public hearing is closed. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve moving forward with the grant and specifically for the project of 

finishing the Augusta Savage auditorium for a COVID Center and a future food kitchen to 

serve the community. 

Motion made by Council Member Butler, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

Page 52

Item #7.



March 02, 2021 Minutes Page 4 of 4 

 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

17. FMPA - March 2021 Bob Page 

 Mr. Page gave an overview of March and discussion followed. 

18. First Reading of Ordinance O-05-2021, Amending Section 90-61 of the City Code to allow 

security and night-lights under certain circumstances. Mike Null 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-05-2021 by title. 

Electric Director, Andy Yeager speaks and explains the Ordinance. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve Ordinance No. O-05-2021 on first reading as to form only and set 

March 16, 2021 at 7:00 PM as the second and final public hearing. 

Motion made by Council Member Johnson, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

19. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports. 

The City Manager and City Attorney made comments regarding various city activities, events, 

operations, and projects. 

20. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

The City Council made comments regarding various city activities, events, operations, and 

projects. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, the meeting was adjourned at 9:19 

p.m. 

 

 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
 

 B. Van Royal, Mayor 

  

Attest:  

 
 

Erin West, City Clerk  

 

Page 53

Item #7.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: March 16, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, the construction 

contract with Williams Industrial Services, LLC, in the amount of $15,426,644.33, for 

construction of the Advanced Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP), as part of the 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), State Revolving Fund (SRF), 

Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, SRF Agreement No. 

WW1000420. 
 

BACKGROUND 

On June 7, 2016, Council provided direction for staff to pursue “Scenario #3” (See excerpt from the June 7th 
staff report) sewer system expansion/improvements.   
 
Excerpt from the June 7, 2016 Staff Report 
 
“At the October 20, 2015 meeting, Council authorized submittal of a loan application under the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) State Revolving Fund (SRF) program for the “Phase I” 
planning portion of the project which would be completed by Mittauer & Associates.  In addition, the Council 
approved a task order to Mittauer & Associates to prepare the planning documents necessary to secure 
capital financing under the SRF Program to complete a Facilities Plan, Environmental Plan, Capital 
Financing Plan, and associated Special Studies.”  
 
The staff report reviewed additional aspects of the analysis to date, and summarized three main 
development scenarios the City was considering.  They are outlined as follows: 
 
Scenario 1:      AWWTP only (no reclaimed water improvements) 
Scenario 2:      AWWTP and Reclaimed Water System Improvements 
Scenario 3:     AWWTP, Reclaimed Water System, and Existing Collection System Improvements 
 
As a result of the discussions and preliminary analysis, the City selected Scenario 3, which had the following 
implications: 
 
“Scenario 3 – AWWTP, reclaimed water system improvements and collection system improvements (repair 
and replacement of clay lines city-wide) 
 
                       Project Cost                            $35,181,000 
                       Loan Amount                          $28,681,000 
                       Retained Earnings                    $1,000,000 
                       Impact Fee Revenue                $1,200,000 
                       Grants                                       $4,300,000  
                       Annual Loan Payment              $1,316,100” 
 
The costs are planning-level values and the annual loan payment will be based on final bid prices, interest 

Page 54

Item #8.



rates at the time of construction loan acquisition, and accumulated grants/retained earnings/impact-fee 
revenue. Each scenario was reviewed with the following common variables: All scenarios assumed a 2% 
increase in the number of wastewater customers each year through FY’20 and a 0.5% increase each year 
from FY’21 through FY’25.All scenarios assumed $6,500,000 available in grant funding, retained earnings, 
and impact fee revenue dedicated to the project up front in order to reduce the total loan repayment 
amount.  Retained earnings is estimated at $1,000,000.  Impact fee revenue is estimated at 
$1,200,000.  Grant funding from all sources is estimated at $4,300,000.  Although, as indicated earlier in this 
writing, we may qualify for 45% grant funds from SRF, the total dollar amount available each year for grant 
funding is limited.  Staff feels that $4,300,000 is a reasonably conservative and prudent estimate as to the 
amount of grant dollars we may receive.  However, depending on the number of projects funded by the SRF 
program in the next two years and the amount of grant funding available, that number can certainly increase. 
All scenarios assume a 2.2%, 30-year loan repayment which is in line with the Capital Financing Plan 
formulas.  However, based on recent interest rate history in the SRF program and use of interest rate buy-
downs such as requiring Davis-Bacon wage requirements and Buy-American provisions of the contractor, 
we may be able to realize lower interest rates when our loan is actually processed.  The 30-year loan 
timeline contemplates repayments from FY’21 through FY’50.Reynolds Park re-development is not factored 
in to any of the scenarios. 
 
On August 10, 2016, SRF staff approved SRF Project # 100400 granting the City of Green Cove Springs a 
$2,261,200.00 loan with a principal forgiveness amount of $1,491,035.00 to address the project’s design, 
permitting, and SSES needs.  These tasks were completed and the project has been completed / closed. 
 
On October 18, 2016, the City Council adopted after second and final reading, Ordinance O-13-2016, 
authorizing the expenditures of up to $34,158,100.00 for capital improvements to the City's wastewater 
treatment, wastewater collection and reclaimed water systems 
 
On August 8, 2018, FDER SRF staff approved SRF Project # 100400 granting the City of Green Cove 
Springs a $6,120,600.00 loan with a principal forgiveness amount of $4,063,425.00 for Phase I Construction 
which includes reclaimed water, electrical and improvements to Lift Stations #2 and #4. 
 
On October 2, 2018 Council approved Resolution No. R-29-2018, a Resolution authorizing staff to submit 
and mayor to execute a loan application to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) 
State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program for Phase I Construction of the Consolidated Advanced 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) and associated Lift Station Improvements. 
 
On December 4, 2018, council approved and authorized the execution of the contract  for SRF Project # 
100400 granting the City of Green Cove Springs a $6,120,600.00 loan with a principal forgiveness amount 
of $4,063,425.00 for Phase I Construction which includes reclaimed water, electrical and improvements to 
Lift Stations #2 and #4. 
 
On March 19, 2019, Council approved bid tabulations and awarded Sawcross the plant portion, and R2T the 
lift station portion, of the Phase I construction. 
 
Phase I construction being completed in May of 2020, Council authorized staff to submit a Request for 
Inclusion (RFI) to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) State Revolving Fund (SRF) 
for Construction Phase II, which includes construction of a 1.25 million gallon per day (MGD) - annual 
average daily flow (AADF), advanced wastewater treatment facility (AWWTF), in the amount of 
$18,165,500.00. 
 
On August 12, 2020, the FDEP SRF program awarded the City a $12,000,000.00, 20 year loan, with 
$4,452,835.00 in principal forgiveness (grant).  Due to a limitation of available funds, the SRF program 
withheld $6,186,500.00 in requested funds, which will be reviewed for award and addition to the current loan 
the next award period. 

On 10/6/2020 City Council approved Resolution No. R-27-2020, a Resolution authorizing staff to submit and 
Mayor to execute the loan application for SRF Loan # 100401 to the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (FDEP) State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program for Phase II Construction of the Consolidated 

Page 55

Item #8.



Advanced Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) in the amount of $12,000,000.00 with a principal 
forgiveness (grant) amount of $4,452,835.00 providing for an actual repayment amount of $7,547,165.00. 

On 1/19/2021 the City Council approved of, and authorized the Mayor, City Attorney and City Clerk to  
execute, the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF), Construction Loan Agreement WW100420, Grant 
Agreement SG 100421 for Phase II Construction of the Consolidated Advanced Wastewater Treatment 
Plant (AWWTP) in the amount of $12,000,000.00 with a principal forgiveness (grant) amount of 
$4,452,835.00 providing for an actual repayment amount of $7,547,165.00.  The original loan request was 
for $18,106,500.00.  Due to limited funds, the SRF program limited the award to $12,000,000.00, with the 
plan to award the city an additional $6,106,500.00 in July 2021. 

On February 2, 2021, eight Sealed Bids were opened for the construction of the above referenced project.  
Williams Industrial was determined to be the lowest qualified bidder.  The estimated budget / original SRF 
loan request was for $18,106,500.00.  This project came in under projected budget, including the Additive 
Alternates.  

On February 16, 2021 Council approved the Engineers Recommendation of Award to Williams Industrial 
Services, LLC 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$15,426,644.33 from the Wastewater CIP Budget 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve of, and authorize the Mayor to execute, the construction contract with Williams Industrial 

Services, LLC, in the amount of $15,426,644.33, for construction of the Advanced Wastewater 

Treatment Plant (AWWTP), as part of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), 

State Revolving Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, SRF 

Agreement No. WW1000420. 

Page 56

Item #8.



Page 57

Item #8.



Page 58

Item #8.



Page 59

Item #8.



Page 60

Item #8.



Page 61

Item #8.



Page 62

Item #8.



Page 63

Item #8.



Page 64

Item #8.



Page 65

Item #8.



Page 66

Item #8.



Page 67

Item #8.



Page 68

Item #8.



Page 69

Item #8.



Page 70

Item #8.



Page 71

Item #8.



Page 72

Item #8.



Page 73

Item #8.



Page 74

Item #8.



Page 75

Item #8.



Page 76

Item #8.



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE
DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

CANCELLATION

© 1993-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 27 (2016/03)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED.
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS
SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES.  LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

PROPERTY INFORMATION
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION

COVERAGE INFORMATION

COVERAGE / PERILS / FORMS AMOUNT OF INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

(A/C, No):
FAX E-MAIL

ADDRESS:

AGENCY

THIS EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE
ADDITIONAL INTEREST NAMED BELOW. THIS EVIDENCE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE
COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW.  THIS EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE
ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE ADDITIONAL INTEREST.

CUSTOMER ID #:
AGENCY

SUB CODE:CODE:

INSURED LOAN NUMBER POLICY NUMBER

TERMINATED IF CHECKED
CONTINUED UNTIL

EXPIRATION DATEEFFECTIVE DATE

THIS REPLACES PRIOR EVIDENCE DATED:

COMPANY

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE

REMARKS (Including Special Conditions)

MORTGAGEE

ADDITIONAL INSURED LOSS PAYEE

ADDITIONAL INTEREST
NAME AND ADDRESS

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

LOAN #

PERILS INSURED BASIC BROAD SPECIAL

LENDER'S LOSS PAYABLE

3/9/2021

817-336-2377
Higginbotham Insurance Agency, Inc.
500 W. 13TH
Fort Worth, TX 76102

817-882-9284 mlane@higginbotham.net

Everest National Insurance Company
P.O. Box 409872
Atlanta, GA 30384-9872

Williams Industrial Services LLC
100 Crescent Centre Parkway
Suite 1240
Tucker, GA 30084

IM3CM00509-211

03/22/2021 11/15/2022

Builders Risk - 1277 Harbor Road, Green Cove Springs, FL 32043

X

Any One Loss or Occurrence
Earth Movement
Water Damage
Cold Testing
Fungus and Mold
Pollution Cleanup
Ordinance or Law ($15,400,000 (A); $250,000 (B); $250,000 (C) )
Wind
Named Windstrom

$15,400,000
$15,400,000
$15,400,000
$15,400,000
$25,000
$25,000

$15,400,000
$15,400,000

$25,000
$50,000
$100,000
$25,000
$25,000
$25,000
$25,000
$25,000
2% VARTOL /
Min. $100,000

• Project description – Expansion to a wastewater treatment facility
• Project # - 8905-56-1

X

City of Green Cove Springs, Florida
321 Walnut Street
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043

Page 77

Item #8.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: March 16, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Change Order #3 in the amount of $119,950.00 for water main 

and sewer force main extension down Wilkes Point Road, and Change Order #4 for water 

main and sewer force main extension down County Road 315 to US 17 in the amount of 

$49,100.00 to General Underground, under Bid Award LC 2020-06, Reynolds Water 

System Improvements in the amount of $685,724.00 (Base Bid), Alternate #1 (water & 

sewer extension to MOBRO) in the amount of $314,275.00, Change Order #1 (Cove 

Subdivision services replacement) in the amount of $60,245, Change Order #2 (County 

Road 209 water / sewer extension) in the amount of $400,000.00, Change Order #3 in the 

amount of $119,950.00 and Change Order #4 in the amount of $49,100.00 for a total 

amount of $1,629,294.00.  Scott Schultz 
 

BACKGROUND 

On June 16, 2016 the City Council approved the Rate Study conducted by Staff and Mittauer & 

Associates.   

On March 21, 2017, Council approved a Task Order with Mittauer & Associates for $50,000.00 for 

development of a Water Master Plan. 

On June 19, 2018, the City Council approved the Water Master Plan conducted by Staff and Mittauer.  

The Master Plan included a thorough review of the existing Water Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

and resulted in an update to the CIP.  As a result of the updated CIP, Staff requested an update to the 

Water portion of the Rate Study to evaluate financing options and alternatives to CIP financing. 

On September 4, 2018, City Council approved a Task Authorization with Mittauer & Associates for 

$12,000.00 to update the Water Rate Study.   

At the March 5, 2019 City Council meeting Staff and Mittauer presented the updated Water Rate Study 

which was subsequently approved by the City Council.  The City Council directed staff to return with an 

Ordinance authorizing the borrowing of funds to complete the immediate and future CIP needs.  Staff 

was also directed to draft an RFP to secure a loan for the “Priority 1” immediate need CIP projects. 

The Priority 1, Reynolds Water System Improvements, total design and construction estimate is 

$1,370,000.00 

The Priority 2, Harbor Road, Bonaventure and Magnolia Point Cul-de-sac, total design and construction 

estimate is $4,850,000.00. 

The Priority 3, Reynolds High Service Pumps & Well 2 design and construction estimate is 

$2,500,000.00. 

 

Page 78

Item #9.



The Priority 4, asbestos concrete (AC) pipe replacement. Design and construction estimate is 

$6,620,000.00 

The Priority 5, Governors Creek Water Main, design, and construction estimate is $360,000.00 

Design and permitting for Priorities 3-5 cost estimate is $1,424,000.00  

Total 2019 Water CIP Cost Estimate is $17,124,000.00  

Council approved Ordinance No. O-07-2019 on First Reading as to Form Only on 3/19/19 which 

authorized staff to borrow up to $18,000,000.00 for capital improvements to the City's Water System. 

Council approved Ordinance No. O-07-2019 on Second and Final Reading on 4/2/19 which authorized 

staff to borrow up to $18,000,000.00 for capital improvements to the City's Water System 

On April 2, 2019 staff was directed to draft an RFP to secure a loan for the "Priority 1" immediate CIP 

projects.  The Priority 1, Reynolds Water System Improvements, total design and construction estimate 

is $1,370,000 plus costs and fees related to the issuance of the loan.  

On April 2, 2019, Council adopted Ordinance No. O-07-2019 authorizing the borrowing of up to 

$18,000,000 for capital improvements to the City's water system.  Staff was also directed to draft an 

RFP to secure a loan for the "Priority 1" immediate CIP projects.  The Priority 1, Reynolds Water 

System Improvements, total design and construction estimate is $1,370,000 plus costs and fees related to 

the issuance of the loan.   

During the May 21, 2019 meeting, Council authorized staff to award the loan for improvements to the 

City's water distribution system in Reynolds Park to Synovus Bank.  Synovus Bank was chosen to 

finance the Water Utility Revenue Note, Series 2019 with a fixed 2.63% interest rate for 10 years 

without premium or prepayment penalty.  This loan is secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues of 

the City’s Water Utility System.  The net revenues pledge for the Water Utility Revenue Note, Series 

2019 will be obligated for the ten year term of the loan.  The maturity date for this loan is April 1, 2029. 

A formal bid was conducted by city staff and Mittauer for the Reynolds Water System Improvements.  

Included as an alternate was the extension of water & sewer services to MOBRO which came up at the 

end of the design and was added. 

City staff and the engineer of record have reviewed the received bids and certified General Underground 

as the qualified bidder. 

Through value engineering and project optimization the total amount for the Reynolds improvements 

was $684,724.00, far below the $1,350,000.00 estimate.  This enabled staff to include financing for the 

extension of water services to and across the MOBRO property to them water.  MOBRO will be 

contributing approximately $150,000.00 of the $314,275.00 cost of the extension for water and sewer 

services.  The system has been sized for future expansion east on State Road 16. 

City Council approved Bid Award LC 2020-06, Reynolds Water System Improvements in the amount of 

$685,724.00 (Base Bid), and Alternate #1 (water & sewer extension to MOBRO) in the amount of 

$314,275.00 for a total amount of $1,000,449.00 to General Underground on 5/19/2020. 

As General Underground is already mobilized, has demonstrated to be cost effective and produce quality 

work, has established unit prices, and the subject projects have a short timeline, the following change 

orders have been implemented, or are being requested. 

On 7/7/2020 Council approved Change Order #1 (Cove Subdivision services replacement) in the amount 

of $60,245. 

Page 79

Item #9.



On 12/8/2020 Council approved Change Order #2 (County Road 209 water / sewer extension) in the 

amount of $400,000.00 

This request is for Change Order #3 in the amount of $119,950.00 for water main and sewer force main 

extension down Wilkes Point Road, and Change Order #4 for water main and sewer force main 

extension down County Road 315 to US 17 in the amount of $49,100.00. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$169,050.00 to be split between the Water and Sewer Funds, as applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Change Order #3 in the amount of $119,950.00 for water main and sewer force main extension 

down Wilkes Point Road, and Change Order #4 for water main and sewer force main extension down 

County Road 315 to US 17 in the amount of $49,100.00 to General Underground. 

Page 80

Item #9.



CR 315 Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total

1 Mobilization 1 LS 4,500.00$             4,500.00$         

2 6" HDPE 1 LS 12,000.00$           12,000.00$       

3 6" Gate Valve 2 EA 1,350.00$             2,700.00$         

4 Tie In 6" FPVC WM to Existing 8" WM 1 EA 4,000.00$             4,000.00$         

5 Pressure Testing & Bacteria Testing 1 LS 2,500.00$             2,500.00$         

6 2" Force Main 1 LS 7,500.00$             7,500.00$         

7 2" Gate Valve 2 EA 1,200.00$             2,400.00$         

8 2" Tapping Sleeve 1 EA 2,500.00$             2,500.00$         

9 2" Pressure Test 1 LS 2,500.00$             2,500.00$         

10 Restoration 1 LS 5,500.00$             5,500.00$         

11 Demobilization 1 LS 3,000.00$             3,000.00$         

Total 49,100.00$       

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

3248 US Highway 17 (CR 315 / US 17)

Page 81

Item #9.



CR 315 Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total

1 Mobilization 1 LS 4,500.00$        4,500.00$                                      

2 6" HDPE 1 LS 12,000.00$      12,000.00$                                    

3 6" Gate Valve 2 EA 1,350.00$        2,700.00$                                      

4 Tie In 6" FPVC WM to Existing 8" WM 1 EA 4,000.00$        4,000.00$                                      

5 Pressure Testing & Bacteria Testing 1 LS 2,500.00$        2,500.00$                                      

6 2" Force Main 1 LS 7,500.00$        7,500.00$                                      

7 2" Gate Valve 2 EA 1,200.00$        2,400.00$                                      

8 2" Tapping Sleeve 1 EA 2,500.00$        2,500.00$                                      

9 2" Pressure Test 1 LS 2,500.00$        2,500.00$                                      

10 Restoration 1 LS 5,500.00$        5,500.00$                                      

11 Demobilization 1 LS 3,000.00$        3,000.00$                                      

Total 49,100.00$                                    

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

3248 US Highway 17 (CR 315 / US 17)

Page 82

Item #9.



Scioto Ct Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total

1 Mobilization 1 LS 4,500.00$    4,500.00$    

2 Dewatering 1 LS 7,500.00$    7,500.00$    

3 Place 8" SDR 26 Gravity Sewer 220 LF 60.00$          13,200.00$  

4 Core Downstream MH 1 EA 2,000.00$    2,000.00$    

5 Adjust MH Lid 1 LS 3,000.00$    3,000.00$    

6 TV Inspection of New Main 1 LS 2,500.00$    2,500.00$    

7 Sewer Bypass Pumping 1 LS 6,500.00$    6,500.00$    

8 Install Roadbase & Testing 750 SQFT 6.00$            4,500.00$    

9 Mill & Pave 1" Lift 1000 Sqyd 25.00$          25,000.00$  

10 Restoration 1 LS 5,500.00$    5,500.00$    

11 Demob 1 LS 3,000.00$    3,000.00$    

Total 77,200.00$  

Alt. 1

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

SCIOTO CT SEWER REPAIR

Page 83

Item #9.



Item No. Item DESCRIPTION
Estimated 

Quanity
 Unit   Unit Price 

1 Mobilization 1 LS 7,500.00$      

2 3" TAPPING SLEEVE and VALVE (WATER) 1 EA 3,500.00$      

3 3" TAPPING SLEEVE and VALVE (SEWER) 1 EA 3,500.00$      

4 3" Water Main 1,300 LF 27.50$           

5 3" GATE VALVE ( Water) 1 EA 1,250.00$      

7 2" BLOW OFF ASSEMBLY MANUAL (WATER) 1 EA 3,000.00$      

8 3" FORCE MAIN 1300 LF 27.50$           

9 3" GATE VALVE (Sewer) 1 EA 1,300.00$      

10 2" BLOW OFF ASSEMBLY MANUAL (SEWER) 1 EA 3,000.00$      

11 RESTORATION 1 LS 10,900.00$    

12 AS-BUILTS SURVEYOR 1 LS 7,000.00$      

13 DEMOBILIZATION 1 LS 7,500.00$      

TOTAL

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

WILKES POINT ROAD

Page 84

Item #9.



Total

7,500.00$        

3,500.00$        

3,500.00$        

35,750.00$      

1,250.00$        

3,000.00$        

35,750.00$      

1,300.00$        

3,000.00$        

10,900.00$      

7,000.00$        

7,500.00$        

119,950.00$    

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

WILKES POINT ROAD

Page 85

Item #9.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: March 16, 2021 

FROM: Mike Null 

SUBJECT: Approval of Pay Application #1 to Terry’s Electric for Chapman Substation Construction 

Improvements in the amount of $227,171.99, leaving a balance of $651,914.01 in contract 

number LC 2020-17 in the total amount of $879,086. Andy Yeager 
 

BACKGROUND 

At the December 8, 2020 City Council meeting, Council awarded ITB LC 2020-17 to perform 

construction work at the Chapman Substation to Terry’s Electric in the amount of $879,086.00. 

Terry’s Electric has submitted Pay Application # 1 in the amount of $227,171.99 for payment.  The 

City’s Engineer, Patterson & Dewar, as well as city staff have reviewed the pay application and find it to 

be complete and recommend approval for payment. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The funds for the construction project in the amount of $879,086.00 are in the Electric Department’s FY 

2021 capital project fund. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Pay Application #1 to Terry’s Electric for Chapman Substation Construction Improvements in 

the amount of $227,171.99, leaving a balance of $651,914.01 in contract number LC 2020-17 in the 

total amount of $879,086. 
 

Page 86

Item #10.



 
 

1531 Hunt Club Blvd, Suite 200 
Gallatin, TN 37066 

 
(615) 527-7084 

pdengineers.com 
 

 
 

March 10, 2021 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Mike Null  
City of Green Cove Springs 
321 Walnut Street 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043  
 
Subject: Chapman Substation & SCADA Installation, Construction Contract LC 2020-17 
 Terry’s Electric – Application for Payment No. 1 
  
 
Mr. Null, 

 
Enclosed is the Contractor’s first invoice for the subject project.  We have reviewed the invoice and recommend 
payment as follows: 

 
Original Contract Amount 879,086.00$            
Total Amount Due to Date 252,413.32$            
Less Retainage (10%) (25,241.33)$             
Net Amount Due to Date 227,171.99$            
Less Previously Recommended Payments -$                          
Net Amount Due this Application 227,171.99$            
Balance Remaining 651,914.01$             

 
Please forward payment directly to the address noted on the invoice. If you have any questions or comments, please 
feel free to call me at (615) 527-7077. 
 
Sincerely, 
Patterson & Dewar Engineers, Inc. 
 
 
 
P. Anthony Hanson, P.E. 
Principal Engineer 
ahanson@pdengineers.com 

Page 87

Item #10.

mailto:ahanson@pdengineers.com


227,171.99

3/10/2021

Page 88

Item #10.



Page 89

Item #10.



Page 90

Item #10.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA  

TO:  City Council MEETING DATE: March 16, 2021 

FROM: Michael Daniels, AICP, Planning & Zoning Director 

SUBJECT: Pinewood Court Estates Replat 
 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

APPLICANT: Joe Wiggins, Wiggins Construction 

Company of North Florida Inc. 
OWNER: Wiggins Investment of North Florida, 

Inc. 

PROPERTY LOCATION: Pinewood Court  

PARCEL NUMBER: 016838-000-00 

FILE NUMBER: 202100102 

CURRENT ZONING:  R-3 – Multifamily  

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION: Residential High Density 

BACKGROUND 

Joe Wiggins with Wiggins Construction Company of N. Florida, Inc. has submitted a subdivision replat 

application (#202100102) for a replat of part of Lot D, Block 105 of the Palmer and Ferris Tract. This 

plat would create 12 townhome units.  The project was approved initially as a site plan for 12 townhome 

units in 2018.  The replat has been reviewed by City staff and on the City's behalf, by CHW for 

compliance with Chapter 177, Florida Statutes. Attachments include: the plat, a boundary survey, the title 

opinion, and the application. 

 

This replat will enable 12 lots in the Core City to be developed as attached townhomes.  This in-fill 

development will add to the City's tax base in an area where City services are already provided. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of the Pinewood Court Estates Replat and authorization for the Mayor to sign the plat. 

  

MOTION: To approve case #: 202100102, the Pinewood Court Estates Replat and authorize the Mayor to sign 

the plat. 

 

Page 91

Item #11.



Page 92

Item #11.



Page 93

Item #11.



Page 94

Item #11.



Page 95

Item #11.



Page 96

Item #11.



Page 97

Item #11.



Page 98

Item #11.



Page 99

Item #11.



Page 100

Item #11.



Page 101

Item #11.



Page 102

Item #11.



Page 103

Item #11.



Page 104

Item #11.



Page 105

Item #11.



Page 106

Item #11.



Page 107

Item #11.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council MEETING DATE: March 16, 2021 

FROM: Michael Daniels, AICP, Planning & Zoning Director 

SUBJECT: Review and approval of request to temporarily close a portion of Walnut Street on 

3/27/2021 as part of a minor special event, Vietnam Veterans Day Ceremony, hosted by the 

BOCC 
 

BACKGROUND 

The Clay County Board of County Commissioners has applied for a minor event to be held on March 27, 

2021. The event will be from 10am to 12pm, with setup starting around 8am and breakdown finishing by 

1pm. Clay County School property will be used for parking and vehicle displays. The closure of a small 

portion of Walnut Street, from Gratio Place to Ferris Street, would be for safety purposes and control of 

traffic during the event. A map is provided in the attachments, showing the portion of the road they would 

like to temporarily close.  

Clay County will be providing an officer to be detailed at the event. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of the temporary closure of a portion of Walnut Street, from Gratio Place to 

Ferris Street, as shown on the map submitted with the application. 
 

Page 108

Item #12.



Page 109

Item #12.



Page 110

Item #12.



Page 111

Item #12.



Page 112

Item #12.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: March 16, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of funding in the amount of $44,814.60 to Irby for electric cable for 

the Chapman Substation project. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The electric department utilizes a wide variety of materials for routine electric system maintenance and 

capital system hardening projects.  Warehouse staff solicits quotes from vendors and utilizes a 

combination of price and lead time to award material purchases to vendors.  This cable is for the 

Chapman Substation transformer project.   Note:  The other vendors are much higher as they would not 

break down their reels into smaller lengths. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$44,814.60 to the Electric Department capital and operating budgets 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve funding in the amount of $44,814.60 to Irby for electric cable for the Chapman Substation 

project. 
 

Page 113

Item #13.



Page 114

Item #13.



Page 115

Item #13.



Page 116

Item #13.



  

 

     City of Green Cove Springs 
(904) 297-7500     321 Walnut Street              Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
Florida Relay – Dial 7-1-1          www.greencovesprings.com 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Steve Kennedy, City Manager 
 
From:  Development Services Department 
 
Date:  March 1, 2021 
 
Subject: Monthly Planning, Code Enforcement and Building Report for February, 2021 
 
 
PLANNING 
In February, Alliance Permitting Service opened at 409 Walnut St and Radise International opened at 4035 

J Louis St. Total Business Tax Revenue for February was $485.  
  
During the month of February, Staff worked on:  

• Special Event applications for a pet adoption event, kickball tournament, and Food Truck Friday  
• Special Exception for a church at 112 Magnolia Ave 
• Lot Split for parcel 017576-000-00 
• Plat for Pinewood Court Townhomes, 016838-000-00 – site plan already approved, platting to sell 

townhome units individually 
• Lot Split for 806 Cove St 
• Subdivision application for 018094-000-00 off Houston St (proposing 3 lots) 
• Annexation and Future Land Use applications for the Gustafson property, 016515-000-00 
• Document dispositioning and scanning with ImageStoreHouse  

o Overseeing volunteers helping with the scanning project 
• Configuration of new permit / project tracking software, SmartGov 
• Initiation of GIS Project for comprehensive online mapping system 

 

Revenues for Planning related fees for February were $3543.99.  

 
CODE ENFORCEMENT  
In February, there were 4 new Code Enforcement complaints filed. Voluntary compliance was achieved for 
9 cases resulting in case closure. The City received $30 in Code Enforcement fines for Special Magistrate 
orders previously issued.  For Fiscal Year 2020-2021, Code Enforcement has collected $5,150 Code 
Enforcement fines. 
 
BUILDING 
Building permit activity increased from January to February. The total number of building permits issued in 
February was 44 compared to 32 in January. Permit activity for February 2021 increased by 29% from 
February 2020.   
 
Revenues for Building related fees for February were $17,273.66. 

Page 117

Item #14.

http://www.greencovesprings.com/


  

 

 
 
 
 
 

2021 PERMIT SUMMARY 

NEW HOUSES February 

MAGNOLIA POINT: 0 

MAGNOLIA WEST: 0 

CORE CITY: 1 

CONDOS: 0 

                                                                              

COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY         February 

BUILDING (NEW) 0 

                                                                           

OTHER PERMIT ACTIVITY February 

ADDITION - COMMERCIAL 0 

ADDITION - RESIDENTIAL 4 

REMODEL - COMMERCIAL 1 

REMODEL - RESIDENTIAL 3 

SCREEN ROOMS: 0 

SHIP PROGRAM: 0 

SIGNS: 1 

POOLS: 3 

RE-ROOFING: 8 

GARAGE/SHED: 0 

OTHER PERMITS: 23 

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED 44 

Page 118

Item #14.



  

 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

MONTHLY PERMIT ACTIVITY

2019 2020 2021

Page 119

Item #14.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

 

               CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS 

                      POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

 

            Derek S. Asdot, Chief of Police ▪ 1001 Idlewild Avenue ▪ Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 ▪ Main (904) 297-7300 ▪ Fax (904) 284-1436 

 
The following is the official summary of activity conducted by members of the Green Cove Springs Police 
Department for the month of February 2021: 
 
Total # Calls for Service: 656  
Total # Arrests: 23  
Total # Traffic Stops:  401       Total # Citations: 110   % Citations to stops: 27% 
Total # Building and business security checks: 1521 
Total # Police Related Services: 3609 
Response Times:   Priority 1: 5M46sec     Priority 2: 0m59sec    Priority 3: 5M25sec 
Dispatch Phone Communication:   911 calls: 235      Non-Emergency calls:  319   Walk-In: 9 
                        
Marine Enforcement:  Marine enforcement was conducted on the following dates. 
None 
 
Red Light Camera Program:  
Video Review: 
Ofc. Gann reviewed 1086 violations, approved 999  and rejected 87. 
Sgt. Luedtke reviewed 131 violations, approved 117 and rejected 14. 
 
Total violations reviewed for the month: 1217       Approval Rating:  91.70%  
Total hours reviewing video: 33.09 
 

 

Individual Officer Initiative: 
 

Sergeant Luedtke: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times: 6   # Citations: 5  # Warnings: 8 
Locations: 
School Zones 
Bay/Orange 
Houston/Cypress 
Arrests: 3 
2021000253 Failure to Appear 
2021000281 Petit Theft 
2021000327 Dealing in Stolen Property 
P.O.P Project: 

• Ofc. Henderson and I have continued to assess a homeless camp that is on private property at 654 S. 
Orange. Upon further inspection there is a large amount of trash, a sailboat and multiple vehicles 
with people sleeping inside. Ofc. Henderson and I have informed CMDR. Hines and as well as Code 

Page 120

Item #14.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

Enforcement . During contact with one of the homeless subjects, it was discovered he had an active 
warrant and was arrested. 

Community Involvement: 
• I participated in the Elks Lodge event that provided females that were pregnant and in need toys, 

diapers and diaper bags  
• I have provided several children with Police Items and allowed them to tour my police car 

Other Significant Accomplishments: 
• Maintain the Sex Offender update  
• I monitor the boat slip pay and ensure there are envelopes for payment 

• Spent several hours reviewing red light cameras 
 

Officer Henderson: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times: 40  # Citations: 17 # Warnings: 39                              
Leonard C. Taylor and Slow Tide             
1300 Idlewild 
1604 Idlewild 
Arrests: 3 
2021000320 Trespassing 
2021000236 Warrant during traffic stop 
2021000232 Violation of Probation  
P.O.P Project:  

• 400-blk South Magnolia Avenue- sent a report to Public Works reference to trash all over the area. 
Danny removed all the trash. 

• 654 South Orange Avenue-took pictures for Cmdr Hines in reference to Code Enforcement. 
Community Involvement:  

• Participated in the Elks Lodge motherhood event. 
• I conducted a traffic stop in Orange Park due to the driver appeared to be drunk. The male subject 

did not have a license and the passenger had a warrant. OPPD took the arrest. 
• I was first on an accident at I295 and Roosevelt Blvd. I asked for JSO and Public Safety due to one of 

the subjects was hurt. 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• Ofc. Henderson had the highest amount of activity in February 
 

Officer: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times:  # Citations:  # Warnings:  
Locations: 
Arrests: 0 
P.O.P Project:  
Community Involvement:  
Other Significant Accomplishments: 
This position currently vacant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 121

Item #14.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

Sergeant Hess: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times: 9  # Citations: 10 # Warnings: 34 
Locations: 
410 S Orange Ave 
1400 S. Orange Ave 
900 Blk LCT Blvd 
Orange Ave at North St 
Orange Ave at Governors St 
Arrests: 0 
P.O.P Project: 

• DREI anti-narcotics operation 
Community Involvement: 

• While handling a 911 hang up on Ruby St. The grandfather advised his grandson had accidently call 
911 while playing a game on his phone. The child was really scared, crying and did not want to speak 
to me because he thought I was mad. I calmed the child down and told him that accidents happen as 
not to discourage him from calling 911 when it was necessary. The grandfather was appreciative I 
took the time to talk to his grandson and explain that to him.  

• Attended Sgt. Millers Retirement Party in the EOC. 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• I installed a new shop Shop Vac in the sally port for officers to keep their vehicles clean. 
 

Officer Morando: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times: 17  # Citations: 21 # Warnings: 85 
Locations: 
1400 S ORANGE AV 

PALMETTO AV/COVE ST 

800 LEONARD C TAYLOR PKWY 
1300 IDLEWILD AVE 

1200 IDLEWILD AVE 
COLONIAL DR./ST. ANDREWS CT 

1200 HOUSTON ST 

400 S ROBERTS ST 

Arrests: 3 
2021-000239 Habitual Traffic Offender 
2021-000242 Warrant from GCSPD 
2021-000339 Petit theft/attempted arson 
P.O.P Project:  

• DREI anti-narcotics operation 
Community Involvement:   

• Spoke with children about being a police officer 
• Attended Sgt. Millers Retirement Party in the EOC. 

Other Significant Accomplishments: 
• Applied for the position of Patrol Sergeant 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 122

Item #14.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

Officer:  
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times:    # Citations:  # Warnings:  
Arrests:  
P.O.P Project:  
Community Involvement: 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• This position currently vacant 

 
 
Sergeant Perry: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times:  # Citations:  # Warnings:  
Locations: 
Arrests:  
P.O.P Project:  
Community Involvement: 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• Sgt. Perry is performing light duties due to work related injury 
 
 

Officer Graham: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times: 10  # Citations: 3 # Warnings: 7 
Idlewild and West 
Idlewild and Oakridge 
Idlewild and San Remo 
Orange and Harbor 
Arrests: 4 
2021000260 VOP 
2021000290 FTA 
2021000318 Possession of Controlled Substance 
P.O.P Project: 

• During patrol I was flagged down by a concerned citizen in reference to a streetlight that was out at 
the intersection of Vermont and Green Cove Avenue. I sent an email to request the light be fixed or 
repaired.   

• DREI anti-narcotics operation 
Community Involvement: 

• I made contact with a citizen in the 400 block of N. Pine Avenue whose vehicle was broken down. I 
assisted the citizen with getting it running again.   

• I made contact with a child in Vera Francis Hall Park who had fallen off their bicycle. I provided the 
child with a band aid for a scrape on his leg.    

• Other significant Achievements: 
• Acting Sergeant for his shift 
• Applied for the position of Patrol Sergeant 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123

Item #14.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

 
 
 

Officer Ruoss: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times: 33  # Citations: 22 # Warnings: 31 
Locations: 
Idlewild and West 
Idlewild and Oakridge 
N Orange and Governor 
Lamont and Cypress 
Leonard C Taylor and Slow tide 
Canyon Falls and Summit Oaks 
Arrests: 2 
2021000294 Drug Paraphernalia 
2021000261 VOP 
P.O.P Project:  

• Emailed city regarding pothole at Idlewild and Oakridge 
• Worked with Det. Carpenter on narcotics cases throughout the City 
• DREI anti-narcotics operation 

Community Involvement:   
• While on a property check I was able to talk with a little girl about the police car and she got to play 

with the lights and gave her a Jr badge  
Other Significant Accomplishments: 
None 
 

Sergeant:   
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times: 0  # Citations: 0 # Warnings: 0 
Locations: 
Arrests:  
P.O.P Project:  
Community Involvement:  
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• This position currently vacant 
 

Officer Camp: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times: 12  # Citations: 0 # Warnings: 2 
700 Leonard C Taylor 
200 Orange 
1200 Orange 
Arrests: 4 
2021000330 Resisting Without 
2021000319 Counterfeit Tag/Decal 
2021000283 Trespass – Occupied Structure 
2021000276 FTA Warrant 
P.O.P Project: 

• None 
Community Involvement:  

• Played with kids and handed out stickers in St Johns Landing Apartments  

Page 124

Item #14.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

Other Significant Accomplishments: 
• Acting Sergeant for his shift 

 

Officer Newton: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Times: 5   # Citations: 3 # Warnings: 10 
Leonard C Taylor  
1200 Orange  
Arrests: 3 
2021-000258 TRESPASS OF AN OCCUPIED DWELLING 
2021-000282 FAILURE TO APPEAR 
2021-000329 BREACH OF PEACE AND RESISTING AN OFFICER WITHOUT VIOLENCE 
P.O.P Project: 

• Obtained warrant for person who obstructed investigation 
Community Involvement:  
Provided a young girl a Green Cove Springs Police Department plastic badge during an attempt to locate on 
Ferris near Spring Park. 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 
 

 

 
Officer Babcock and K-9 Grit: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Traffic Stops: 19  # Citations:  1 # Warnings: 18 
Locations: Citywide 
Arrests: 0 
K-9 Activities: 
# Shifts Training: 15  Total Time Spent Training:  86.5 hrs 
# of Apprehensions: 0 
Mutual Aid Calls: 0 
# of K-9 Searches:   0         # Finds:     0           # No Finds:      0      
Narcotics Detection Log: 
K-9 Demonstrations: 0 
P.O.P. Project:  

• DREI anti-narcotics operation 
Community Involvement:  

• Spoke with several kids at Springs Church while on a call about K-9 Grit. 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 125

Item #14.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

Part Time Officers: 
 

Officer Gann:  
(Responsible for Red Light Camera Program) 

# Hrs Worked: 104.5 

Arrests: 0 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• Reviewed RLC video and issued citations 
• Worked Several patrol shifts 
• Completed FDLE online training 
• Completed high liability training 

 

Officer Reese: 
# Hours Worked: 0  

Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Traffic Stops:0    # Citations: 0 # Warnings: 0 
Locations: 
Arrests: 0 
Community Involvement/ POP: 
Other Significant Accomplishments:   

• Ofc. Reese is in Field Training 
 

Officer Gibbs: 
# Hours Worked: 29  
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Traffic Stops:2    # Citations: 0 # Warnings: 0 
Locations: Citywide 
Arrests: 0 
Community Involvement/ POP: 
Other Significant Accomplishments:   

• Ofc. Gibbs worked several different duties to include details and SRO coverage 
 

School Resource Officers: 
 

Officer: Lee (Junior High School) 
Incidents at School:  
I have been informed that some students may be selling “vapes” to other students on campus. I do not have 
a significant investigative lead at this time but will continue to inquire. One account is that one particular 
student may be selling them off campus. 
Cases Worked:  

• None 
Safety Issues/Intelligence: 

• None 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 126

Item #14.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

Officer Rulon: (Charles E Bennet Elementary) 

Incidents at School: 
• None 

Cases Worked:  
• None 

Safety Issues/Intelligence: 
• Completed a work order to fix one of the stop signs on campus 

Other Significant Accomplishments: 
 
 

 
 
Officer’s in Field Training: 
 
Part Time Officer Reese 
Full Time Officer Van Dyke 
 

SIGNIFICANT OFFICER ACTIVITY D.E.A. TASK FORCE 
 

Detective: Carpenter 
Green Cove Narcotics Cases: 3 
2019002237 – Ongoing Methamphetamine investigation. 
DEA/GCSPD  – Methamphetamine DTO investigation 
GCSPD 2020-002473 
DEA Cases: 3 
GCSPD 2019002237/G4-21-0022 – Ongoing Methamphetamine investigation.   
DEA/GCSPD – Methamphetamine DTO investigation 
DEA/GCSPD – Heroin/Fentanyl investigation  
Narcotic Investigations/Cases Outside of City/County: 9 
GCSPD 2019002237 – Ongoing Methamphetamine investigation.   
DEA – Methamphetamine DTO investigation 
DEA – Fentanyl, Heroin, Methamphetamine  
5 Illicit drug Money transportation cases 
Seizures: 
$30,000 cash 
1Kg Heroin 
½ Kg Methamphetamine 
Significant events: 
0 trash pull 
20+ hours surveillance 
1 jail interview 
1 confidential informant cultivated 
5 JIA Interdiction 
1 search warrants completed 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 127

Item #14.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

SIGNIFICANT DETECTIVE ACTIVITY 
 

Detective Patterson: 
# of Open Cases: 10 

# of Cases Cleared by Arrest: 0 
Total # Cleared Cases for Month: 1 
Significant Case Developments: 
2020-000990 Arrest Warrant Processing with the SAO 
2020-002360 Murder case. Met with SAO. Continuing to work with them to make two more arrests.  
2020-002117 Nationwide Auto Theft Case. Case transferred to FDLE/FBI.  
Background Investigations: 
3  Officer Completed   
3  Officer in Progress   
0  Dispatcher Completed 
1  Dispatcher in Progress  

Significant Accomplishments:  
• DREI anti-narcotics operation 
 

Detective Vineyard: 
# of Open Cases: 10   
# of Cases Cleared by Arrest: 1   
Total # Cleared Cases for Month: 0 
Significant Case Developments:  
2021-000076 (new) Lewd/current invs 
2021-000079 (new) Transferred to CCSO 
2020000490 Waiting to be inactivated 
2020000783 Still showing open 
2021000242 3 warrants issued/1 arrest 
Significant Accomplishments:   
• DREI anti-narcotics operation 
 

Significant Evidence Custodian Activity 
 

Part Time Evidence Technician Barton 
• Barcoded Items:            34 Items 
• Destroyed Items:   78 Items 
• To FDLE:    3 Items 
• Return from FDLE:   3 Items 
• Assisted SAO:    0 cases 
• Returned to Owners:   16 cases 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 128

Item #14.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 129

Item #14.



Page 1 of 5 

 

Public Works 
Monthly Executive Summary 

February 2021 
 
Street Department 
 
During the month of February, the Street Department has been busy as beavers repairing potholes and 

sinkholes throughout the Cove Life.  We had 7.45 inches of rain this month.  In addition, the Street 

Department completed the following tasks: 

• Clean storm drains City Wide. 

• Trim back limbs and vegetation on the City right-of-ways. 

• Green Cove Ave, clean property line for Electric Dept. Project. 
• Finished Repair and Replace fence on FCT/Gustafson Trail.  

• 3 Silt fence inspections.  
 
The Street Department completed 14 additional work orders that pertained to street issues. 
 

Parks Department 
 
During the month of February, the Parks Department mowed, weed-eated, and edged all areas one time 

including the DOT right-of-ways, City Parks, and FCT property.   Additional activities included:  

• Monthly playground equipment inspection and necessary repairs. 

• Clean storm drains City Wide. 

• Cleaned the pool 4 times.  

• Pressure wash police department facility. 
 

The Parks Department completed 2 additional work orders outside of their normal daily work schedules. 
 

Equipment Maintenance 
 
The Equipment Maintenance Shop, as always, works hard to keep the equipment and vehicles going so 
the city can continue to provide our citizens with the exceptional service they are accustomed to.  
During the month of February, Danny, John and Donald completed 84 work orders.   

 
Tradesworker 
 
During the month of February, 26 work orders were completed.   

 
 

Page 130

Item #14.



Page 2 of 5 

Solid Waste Department 
 
       Cove Life, Litter Cleanup Program & New Services: 

• Picked up everything around the rollout cans including large piles of furniture and trash. 

• Picked up as much loose trash, palm fronds, and sticks as possible on the streets, along the 
R.O.W. and ditches regardless of if it is near a container or not. 

• Delivered 7 trash cans and 7 recycle bins to new customers. 

• Delivered 3 blue recycle bins to current customers. 

• Repaired 3 trash cans.  

• Replaced 7 trash cans. 
 
This month, the City collected:   

• 309.33 tons of Class I garbage (13% increase) 

• 17.53 tons of recycling (8% increase) 

• 104.64 tons of yard waste (flat)  
 

 
For comparison during February 2020, the City collected: 

• 274.29 tons of Class I garbage  

• 16.25 tons of recycling  

• 104.72tons of yard waste 
 
 

Water/Wastewater 
 

• W/WW crews/management had personal interaction with several citizens regarding 
water/sewer issues. 

• Contacted all customers on water and irrigation “Highest Users” report that had unusual 
consumption (not usually on report) 

• Staff continues to refine the scope and financials of the consolidated AWWTP, expanded 
reclaimed water system, wastewater collection system improvements and water system capital 
improvements to obtain maximum grant potential, optimize loan conditions and minimize 
impact to customers. 

• W/WW/RW Projects; 
o Design of the improvements to the city’s wastewater treatment system (all phases) is 

complete.  In order to maximize grant opportunities, the initial construction phase was 
split into two pieces, for a total of four phases; 

▪ Phase I is construction of the on-site reclaimed water system (storage tanks, 
high service pumps, electrical) at the existing Harbor Road Facility, and 
rehabilitation of Master Lift Stations #2 and #4.  This phase went out to bid in 
January in two parts – plant reclaimed water improvements & lift station #2 & 
#4.  Construction is in progress with the plant portion at approximately 75% 
completion and lift stations #2 & #4 at 85% completion.  The total Phase I cost is 
$6,120,600. Staff received $4,063,425.00 in “Principal Forgiveness” (grant) from 
FDEP (SRF).  Project Complete June 2020 

▪ Phase II: 

• Construction of the new 1.25 million gallon per day (MGD) advanced 
wastewater treatment plant (AWWTP) at the Harbor Road site.   
Expect Contractor Mobilization last week of March 

 

Page 131

Item #14.



Page 3 of 5 

▪ Phase III: 

• A new force main from Lift Station #2 diverting the sewage from the 
South Plant to Harbor Road (all sewage generated in the City will be 
treated at the new Harbor Road AWWTP). 

• Decommissioning and “mothballing” of the South Wastewater 
Treatment Plant.  The permit will remain in place and the plant could be 
re-commissioned at a later date depending on future activities at the 
Reynolds site. 

▪ Phase IV (future – determined by growth) is a second identical 1.25 MGD 
AWWTP built at the Harbor Road site. 

▪ Phase V (future – determined by growth) is a third identical 1.25 MGD AWWTP 
built at the Harbor Road site.   

o Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey (SSES) of the Core City wastewater collection system is 
complete, including Mittauer final report.  Staff utilizes this data daily in evaluating 
collection system repairs and requests for sewer connections. 

o Continuing to work with FDOT on utility relocations associated with the First Coast 
Expressway.  

o Updated Water Rate Study complete.  

• Staff and Mittauer have initiated a full review of the future capital needs of the water system.  A 
comprehensive capital improvement program (CIP) has been developed as part of the Water 
Master Plan.  As in the past, timing of these improvements is largely driven by future activities in 
Reynolds Industrial Park.  The city has received an FDEP – SRF loan for Planning and Engineering 
of several of the CIP improvements so that as the need for the improvements occur, the City is 
ahead of the game and can apply very quickly to SRF for actual construction dollars as “shovel-
ready” projects.  The total design project cost is $356,800.00, with a $178,400.00 (50%) principal 
forgiveness (grant), leaving an actual loan of $180,100.00. 

• Reynolds Water System Improvements:  In May 2020 the City awarded construction of the 
upgrades to the system to General Underground.  The system improvements include; 

o New water mains along two primary streets to remedy fire hydrants that are 
inadequate. 

o New 12” water main crossing under SR 16 to replace aging mains that endanger the 
integrity of the road.  This will eliminate four existing crossings. 

o New water main along Red Bay Road to eliminate existing aging and leaking pipes.  In 
addition will remedy fire hydrants that are inadequate. 

o New water main and sewer force main extension from Reynolds Park to and across the 
MOBRO complex.  This extension is designed to supply water, fire protection & sewer 
needs to MOBRO and future developments to the east.    

▪ The City Manager and staff have applied for a grant to ease the financial burden 
on MOBRO and the City for this project. 

• The City has received grants from the State of Florida Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) 
to install auxiliary generators at 17 sewage lift stations, and install generators / raise 
infrastructure at four additional stations.  The grant funds 75% of the improvements.  This 
project is underway. 

• Continued remediation of malfunctioning or out-of-service hydrants. 

• Operated and maintained the Harbor Rd. and South Wastewater Treatment Plants as well as the 
Harbor Rd. and Reynolds Water Treatment Plants to meet the requirements of Regulatory 
Agencies. 

• Continued to make process control adjustments at the Harbor Rd. and South WWTP in efforts to 
further lower Total Nitrogen and Total Phosphorus levels being discharged to the St. Johns River.  

• Continued landscape maintenance at Water and Wastewater Treatment Facilities as well as lift 
stations. 

Page 132

Item #14.



Page 4 of 5 

• Continued preventative maintenance on all treatment facility generators. 

• Completed 10 new services. 

• Completed 67 water related work orders. 

• Completed 47 sewer related work orders. 

• Responded to 121 utilities locate requests. 

 
 

TOP 10 WATER CUSTOMERS February 2021 
 Largest Largest 
 (By Consumption) (By Dollar Amount) 
Rank CONSUMER  Rank CONSUMER  
 
1  Sheriff’s Department                                                        1            Garden Highway SE LLC  
2 Garden Highway SE LLC 2 Sheriff’s Department 
3 Kindred Health 3 Kindred Health  
4 Premier Surface Design LLC 4 Clay High 
5            Clay County Court House                  5            Clay County Court House  
6 Governors Greek#436 6 Governors Creek #436 
7 Clay High 7            Premier Surface Design 
8            Springs Coin Laundry                                                         8            Green Cove Springs Junior High   
9            Green Cove Springs Junior High  9            Wiggins Construction CO 
10 A-1 Stone World INC     10          Springs Coin Laundry  
                                                           

 
TOP 10 IRRIGATION CUSTOMERS February 2021 

 Largest Largest 
 (By Consumption) (By Dollar Amount) 
Rank CONSUMER  Rank CONSUMER  
 
1        Vallencourt Construction          1    AMH Development NON RES     
2        AMH Development NON RES     2    Vallencourt Construction      
3        National Gypsum Company      3    National Gypsum Company    
4        Magnolia Point Investments     4    Magnolia Point Investments     
5        Green Cove Springs Junior High 5    Edgewater Landing HOA OF CLAY 
6        D R Horton INC Jacksonville      6    Green Cove Springs Junior High  
7        William Hurley    7    D R Horton INC Jacksonville 
8       Larry Sechrest 8    William Hurley  
9        Edgewater Landing HOA OF CLAY    9    Larry Sechrest                                                                    
10     Sheriff’s Department                                                            10   Sheriff’s Department  

 
 

Page 133

Item #14.



Page 5 of 5 

TOP 10 SEWER CUSTOMERS  February 2021 
 Largest Largest 
 (By Consumption) (By Dollar Amount) 
Rank CONSUMER  Rank CONSUMER  
 
1 St Johns Landing  1 St. John’s Landing  
2 Sheriff’s Department 2 Garden Highway SE LLC 
3 Garden Highway SE LLC 3 Sheriff’s Department  
4 Kindred Health 4            Kindred Health 
5 Premier Surface Desing 5            Clay High                                                                      
6 Clay County Court House 6            Clay County Court House 
7 Governors Creek #436 7 Governors Creek#436 
8    Clay High 8            Premier Surface Design LLC  
9            Springs Coin Laundry                 9            Green Cove Springs Junior High 
10          Green Cove Springs Junior High 10 Wiggins Construction CO 

 
 

 
Wastewater Plant Capacity Status 

South Plant:  TMDL Capacity 0.350 MGD*,  

• Current Loading 0.272 MGD*, 78% Capacity (January 2021 Annual Average) 

• Current & Committed (.033) Loading 0.305 MGD*, 88% Capacity 

• Current, Committed & Requested (0) Loading 0.305 MGD*, 88% Capacity 
 
Harbor Road:  TMDL Capacity 0.650 MGD* 

• Current Loading 0.507 MGD*, 78% Capacity (January 2021 Annual Average) 

• Current & Committed (.092) Loading 0.595 MGD*, 92% Capacity 

• Current, Committed & Requested (0) Loading 0.595 MGD*, 92% Capacity 
*MGD = Million Gallons per Day       
                          Note:  No Reynolds growth or loading projections included in above. 
 

 

Page 134

Item #14.



 

        ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT             
 

 

Significant activities for the month of February 2021 
 

 

•   12   Streetlights repaired 

•   7     Permanent meters installed 

•   2     Temporary meters installed 

•   1     Meter removed 

•   2     Meter check 

•   2     Poles removed 

•   6     Poles installed 
•   3     Voltage check 

•   12   Utility Verifications 

 

In addition to the activities listed above, the Electric Department also: 

 

• Conducted daily morning safety meetings. 

• Conducted daily truck inspections. 

• Trimmed limbs and vines from power lines and poles. 

• Unloaded transformers and supplies when they come in. 

• Inspect/locate ROW permits. 

• Conduct warehouse inventory/order supplies 

• 477 Orange Ave., disconnect power for customer to change out meter. 

• 4530-3 CR 315., measure the diameter of the buss work. 

• 451-457 Jeri Dr., re-insulate 2 poles and replaced 1 transformer and re-work all secondary. 

• 701 Houston St., removed service for house fire. 

• Chapman Substation., removed feeds to cat bank. 

• 965 Worthington Ave., replaced mushroom insulators with tie to jug insulators. 

• 4530-3 CR 15A, installed 2 multi-helix anchors for chapman 1 feeder.   

• 232 Walnut St., move service to new pole and put new CT’s in.  

• 1005A Bunker Ave., replaced JD’s insulators with polymer insulators.  

• 3992 East CR 16A, changed out single-phase dead-end pole that is bad at top. 

• 1107 Martin L. King, Jr Blvd., pulled in secondaries to new library building. 

• 903 Ferris St, Apt 4., reconnected overhead service conductors. 

 

Page 135

Item #14.

http://www.greencovesprings.com/


During the month of February, the Electric Department 

responded to the following outages: 

 

02/03/2021 – Between 7:00 a.m. – 8:00 a.m., 444 S Vermont Ave., blown fuse on transformer related to cold 

weather, 7 customers affected. 

02/05/2021 – Between 10:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m., 710 S Highland Ave., blown transformer fuse by squirrel, 4 

customers affected. 

02/21/2021 – Between 7:45 a.m. – 10:30 a.m., 201 N Oakridge., burnt connections repaired, 3 customers 

affected. 

02/22/2021 – Between 7:30 a.m. – 8:30 a.m., 3776 Randall RD., blown fuse by squirrel, 3 customers affected. 

02/26/2021 – Between 7:00 a.m. – 7:30 a.m., 601 N Palmetto Ave., blown transformer lateral fuse by squirrel, 

10 customers affected. 

02/27/2021 – Between 9:45 a.m. – 12:15 p.m., 100 Joey Circle W, blown transformer fuse, 20 customers 

affected. 

02/27/2021 – Between 12:15 p.m. – 3:15 p.m., 1465 River Ln, blown transformer fuse by squirrel, 10 

customers affected. 

02/28/2021 – Between 9:10 a.m. – 10:15 a.m., 821 Cove St, blown transformer fuse by squirrel, 5 customers 

affected. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 136

Item #14.



Electric Utility Top Consumption Customers (kwh/meter) for 

February: 

NAME                             SERVICE ADDRESS           KWH                 AMOUNT 

St. Johns Landing            1408 N. Orange Ave.              292,100              $28,675.80 

Clay County Jail                                   901 N. Orange Ave.              264,640              $23,109.84 

BD Of County Commissioner            825 N. Orange Ave.              208,800  $18,121.80 

Kindred Health                                801 Oak St.               183,000              $15,848.00 

Winn Dixie Stores, Inc                        3260 Hwy. 17 N.   157,400              $14,353.40 

Tamko Roofing Products           914 Hall Park Rd.  136,800              $12,605.20 

Clay County Court House                  825 N. Orange Ave.              133,920              $11,353.52 

National Gypsum Company              1767 Wildwood Rd.              108,640              $  9,789.84 

Governors Creek #436                       803 Oak St.                                      98,400                         $  9,620.40 

Garber Realty/GMC            3340 Highway 17                 89,760              $  8,462.96 

BD Of Public Instruction                    2025 State Road 16               83,400              $  8,912.40 

City of Green Cove Springs           Set Street Lights                              66,392                         $  6,717.59 

City of Green Cove Springs           1277 Harbor Road                                65,440                         $  5,553.04 

Clay County Driver’s License           477 Houston St.                               63,360               $  6,126.16 

VAC-CON             954 Hall Park Rd.                             53,280                         $  5,233.68 

BD Of Public Instruction                    801 Center St.                                  51,040                         $  5,210.64 

Coral Ridge Foods                               1165 N Orange Ave.     47,520  $  4,430.32   

City of Green Cove Springs               925 S R 16 East South Wwtp          46,960                        $  4,247.76 

Direct TV/AT&T Services Inc.            512 Center St.                                  45,280   $  3,931.28 

Pegasus Technologies            932 Pilot Dr.      44,640  $  4,249.64 

Duval Asphalt Products, Inc             1921 Jersey Ave (east End)             43,200                        $  7,248.20 

BD Of Public Instruction                    1 N Oakridge Ave                  42,960              $   5,752.16 

BD Of Public Instruction                    Clay High School                   42,720              $   5,000.72 

 
Page 137

Item #14.



Electric Utility Department Capital Projects: 

Pole top switch replacement 

This project began 09-18-2019 with the installation of switches at Governors Creek for restoration plan if 

isolation of north feeder across Governors Creek Bridge during extreme emergencies. Project is now in the 

inspection and evaluation process involving Chapman 2 extension to Harbor Rd and load transfer of Chapman 1 

to Chapman 2.  

Magnolia Point Reconductor 

The City has provided survey and equipment rating information to Tocoi Engineering.  The project is 100% 

designed.  The backbone switchgear and wire have been ordered and received.  Work is expected to start in 

Spring 2021 with completion by Winter 2021.  Work will be completed by City crews with support from 

contractors as necessary. 

 

Chapman Substation upgrade 

Patterson and Dewar is the City’s engineering firm for this project. The transformer has been specified and 

ordered.  Patterson and Dewar is designing the rest of the improvements to the substation as well as SCADA to 

be installed throughout the system.   Design is complete.  The construction was awarded to Terry’s Electric. 

They arrived on site the first week of January 2021 to begin work at the substation. The new transformer is set 

to be delivered in March.  The project should be complete in July 2021. 

 

 

Page 138

Item #14.



Chapman 3RD Circuit 

IRBY Construction began September 21, 2020 and the project is now complete. 

       

Chapman 1 / Chapman 2 

Express circuit feed project of Chapman 1 to north of Governors Creek (a.k.a. Magnolia Point Third Feed) 

and Chapman 2 extension to Harbor Rd project have been combined to balance future load requirements north 

of Governors Creek and to supply additional restoration procedure options involving electric outages north of 

Governors Creek. Conductor had been installed on Roberts St. for Chapman 1 alternate path. City crews are 

now working on additional new line on south right of way that will enable Reynolds Park load to be transferred 

from Chapman 1 circuit to Chapman 2.  Materials for this portion of the project are being funded by a DEO 

Grant. 

Houston St. re-conductor 

Planning for the reconductoring of Chapman 2 with 477 AAC from Martin Luther King Blvd. to Palmetto Ave. 

has begun. This will support a second circuit extending north of Governors Creek for restoration involving 

Magnolia Point, provide an alternate tie between Chapman 1 and Chapman 2 (was not possible before due to 

conductor size) and support AMMCON, PASS and other future expansion north of Governors Creek.  Materials 

for this project are being funded by a DEO Grant. 

13kV to 23kv Conversion – US17 from Harbor Road to CR 315 

Planning for this project has begun.  This project will continue the Chapman 1 and Chapman 2 circuits north of 

Harbor Road to provide capacity and reliability for existing and future customers north of Governors Creek.  

Materials for this project are being funded by a DEO Grant. 

Governors Creek Hardening Project 

This project will allow the overhead conductor crossing Governors Creek to be placed underground from Grove 

Street to Harbor Road.  This project has been split into two phases; (1) design and permitting and (2) 

construction.  It is being 75% funded by a FEMA HMGP grant.  Phase 1 is complete.  The project is now being 

evaluated by FDEM and FEMA funding for the construction phase.  Once funding is in place and a contract is 

executed, bidding and construction should take approximately 9 months.  This project will also support to 

extension of Chapman 1 and Chapman 2 circuits north of Governors Creek to provide additional capacity and 

reliability for all customers north of Governors Creek. 

Page 139

Item #14.



 

North and South Substation Improvements 

North and South substation sub-station upgrades have begun with directional bore designs completed to install 

URD 23KV feeds to substation transformers eliminating the possibility of catastrophic failure in the event of 

lightning or material failure which could cause conductor to fall into existing bus work.  

 

 

Page 140

Item #14.


	Top
	Item #1.	Second and Final Hearing Ordinance O-05-2021
	Staff Report - security lights - 021621
	Ordinance No. O-05-2021 - Amending Chapter 90 - Electric Utilities - Security and Night Lights
	322020
	Security Light

	Item #2.	KBT pay app # 6
	KBT Pay Application # 6
	KBT Pay App # 6

	Item #3.	Memorial Day Riverfest
	Memorial Day - ITEM-Staff-7512d91290844841aced3d76fc4f851b (11)
	2021 Special Event Application
	MOU - Jim Craft
	MOU - Matt Craft
	Kynex - GreenCoveSpringsContract

	Item #4.	Water SRF Disbursement Request #10
	Disbursement Request # 10, FDEP, SRF Loan Application DW 100102,  3-16-2021 Staff Report
	Green Cove Springs Disb Req No. 10

	Item #5.	General Underground, Reynolds Water System, Pay Request #6
	General Undergrond Pay Request  #6 Staff Report
	Contractor&#39;s Pay Request No. 6

	Item #6.	Jax Utility Pay request # 1
	JAX pay request one ASACC
	Jax utility pay for ASACC

	Item #7.	MINS 2/16/2021 & 3/02/2021
	2021-02-16 - Regular Minutes
	2021-03-02 - Regular Minutes

	Item #8.	Construction Contract, Williams Industrial, HRAWWTP Phase II
	Construction Contract, Williams Industrial, Advanced WWTF Staff Report
	Construct. Contract Docs - Harbor Rd WRF Exp. Ph. 2 (Williams Industrial executed)
	WIS Certificate of Insurance

	Item #9.	General Underground CO #3 & #4
	General Undergrond Change Order  # 3 &amp; #4
	GU 3248 US 17 Estimate
	GU Wilkes Point Road Estimate

	Item #10.	Terry's Electric First Pay App Chapman Substation
	Staff Report - Terry&#39;s Electric Pay App #1 - 031621
	LC 2020-17, AFP No. 1

	Item #11.	Pinewood Court Estates Replat
	Council Staff Report
	Plat_Sheet 1_03012021
	Plat_Sheet 2_03012021
	Boundary Survey
	Title Certificate_Pinewood Court
	Application_Pinewood Court Townhomes

	Item #12.	CA: Temporary Closure of Walnut Street
	Staff Report_Walnut St Temp Closure
	Event_County Vietnam Veterans Day Ceremony

	Item #13.	Chapman Electric Cable
	Electric Cable Staff Report
	Chapman Electric Cable Quotes

	Item #14.	City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports
	2021 FEBRUARY MONTHLY REPORT Building-CE
	February 2021 Monthly Report - PD
	Public Works - February 2021
	Electric Dept - February 2021 

	Bottom

